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Record ing Job Number: 17899 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

To provide an appropriation to the office of management and budget for a g rant for 
administering 2-1-1 services. 

Minutes: Attached testimony 

Senator Dever calls the hearing to order on SB 2205. 

Senator J. Lee i ntroduces the bi l l  to the committee and stresses its importance. 

(0:1 :10 - 0:04:54) Dave Sprynczynatyk, North Dakota Adjutant General and serves as the 
Director of Emergency Services for the state, provides neutral testimony. During the 
current b iennium, the agency will have contributed approximately $88,000 to the 2-1-1 
service across the state. Of that, approximately $15,000 came through the Nationa l  Guard. 
The other funding that was provided i n  the current bienn ium came through the Emergency 
Services side of the agency. After the 2011 flood , there was need to ensure that there was 
statewide service avai lable. As they look to the next biennium, the agency has 
approximately $67 ,000 that wi l l  be made available to support the National Guard/other 
mi l itary members and their fami lies, and (working with Firstlink) to make sure there is a 
reg istry available for al l of the vulnerable population so that they can have easy access and 
quick response. 

Brief d iscussion between Chairman Lee and Mr. Sprynczynatyk about 2-1-1 being avai lable 
for veterans as well. 

(0:06:14) Senator Larsen inquires how these calls get d irected if someone calls 9-1-1. 

Mr. Sprynczynatyk states that the cal l  can be red irected when it is beyond thei r  capabil ity 
of help ing .  

(0:07:17) Senator Dever asks if the funding h is agency provides i s  federa l .  

Mr. Sprynczynatyk states that the money that they have provided and are going to provide 
is federa l  money. They have not used any general fund money nor are the projecting to in 
the next bienn ium. 
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(0:09:00) Cindy Miller, Executive Director of Firstlink, testifies in support of the b i l l .  See 
attached testimony #1. 

(0:15:33) Chairman Lee asks Ms. Mi l ler how many cal ls F i rstlink took during the flood 
events. 

Ms. Miller states that in 2009 they had over 55 ,000 calls separate just during the flood 
time. The call volume in Ward County is sti l l  very sign ificant. 

(0:16:00- 0:17:30) Discussion between Chairman Lee and Ms. Mi l ler regard ing the funding 
they received from the federal government to upgrade their technology in order to step in 
and help cover emergencies. 

Chairman Lee compl iments the various state departments who col lected funds to make 
sure things kept going when times were tough. 

No further testimony in favor or opposition .  

(0:19:17) Kris Storbeck, Substance Abuse Treatment Administrator for the Department of 
Human Services, provides i nformation on how the department has used the 2-1-1 services. 
See attached testimony #2. 

(0:20:20) Chairman Lee asks if 2-1-1 is printed on the back of lottery tickets in regards to 
compulsive gambl ing. 

Ms. Miller steps back up to the podium and states that the back of lottery tickets read, "If 
gambl ing is no longer fun ,  d ia l 2-1-1." 

(0:20:55) Senator Dever thinks they need to have some kind of perspective on how much 
of their budget is represented if they are going to be considering fund ing $325,000. 

Ms. Miller states that their current budget is around $560,000 a year  to operate 24 hours a 
day across the entire state. They get about $170,000 from United Way and Cass-Ciay, 
about $40,000 from contracts, donors , and other donations, as wel l  as assistance from 
various departments in  the state. 

Senator Dever asks if there has been state fund ing . 

Chairman Lee explains that the state provided funding 2 years ago but it was significantly 
less than the request because some things were taken out. Chairman Lee asks Ms. M i l ler 
to get the history of this for the committee. 

Chairman Lee asks what will happen to the service if they don't get adequate state 
funding .  

Ms. Miller states there board would have to meet and make some decisions. The risk of 
losing it is there .  
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No further questions or testimony. 

Chairman Lee closes the hearing but quickly re-opens it when someone else rises to 
speak. 

(0:23:10) Micki Savelkoul, Suicide Prevention Program d irector for the Department of 
Health ,  provides information to the committee. See attached testimony #3.  

(0:26:44) Chairman Lee asks if  she can tel l  the committee the number of cal ls the National 
Suicide Prevention Hotl ine took from NO. 

Ms. Savelkoul defers to Ms. Mi l ler to answer. Ms. Mi l ler states that 1 ,400 is number of 
calls they took on both 2-1-1 and the National Suicide Prevention Hotl ine. She wi l l  email 
the broken down numbers to the committee. 

(0:27:15) Senator Anderson asks if the callback program is in add ition to the 2-1-1 
service. 

Ms. Savelkoul explains that the cal lback program is a new pi lot p rogram that is funded 
through state general funds for suicide prevention. 

No further questions or testimony. 

The hearing is closed. 

Additional testimony submitted. See attachments #4-6. 
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Senate Human Services Committee 
Red River Room , State Capitol 
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Record ing Job N umber: 18281 

D Conference Committee 

Com m i ttee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

To provide an appropriation to the office of management and budget for a grant for 
administering 2-1-1 services. 

Minutes: You may make reference to "attached testimony." 

Committee d iscussion on SB 2205: 

Senator Dever moves Do Pass with referral to Appropriations. 

Senator Larsen seconded. 

Roll Call Vote: 5-0, motion passes. 

Senator Dever is the carrier. 
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Date: ;;JG/; 3 
Roll Call Vote #: / 

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. c:Jd0Q 
Senate Human Services Committee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken: []/Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass D Amended 0 Adopt Amendment 

IJ?'Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By 5th . [)e Y-R /L 

Senators Yes 

Chariman Judy Lee t/ 
Vice Chairman Oley Larsen v 
Senator Dick Dever / 
Senator Howard Anderson, Jr. J/ 

Seconded By S,un . � 
No Senator Yes 

Senator Tyler Axness v 
No 

Total (Yes) __ __,6.L_ _ ____ No ------=0=-----------
Absent ·o 
Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 5, 201 3  1 2:38pm 

Mod ule I D: s_stcomrep_21_007 
Carrier: Dever 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2205: Human Services Committee (Sen. J. Lee, Chairman) recommends DO PASS 

and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (5 Y EAS, 0 NAYS, 
0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2205 was rereferred to the Appropriations 
Committee. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_21_007 
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02-11-2013 
Job # 18668 

0 Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation to the office of management and budget for a 
grant for administering 2-1-1 services. 

Minutes: See attached testimony 

Chairman Holmberg cal led the committee to order on Monday, February 11, 2013 at 
10:30 am in regards to SB 2205. Al l  committee members were present except Vice 
Chairman Grindberg and Senator Mathern . Lori Laschkewitsch and Tammy R .  Dolan from 
OMS and Brady Larson from Leg islative Council were present. 

Senator Judy Lee, District 13, i ntroduced SB 2205 and provided testimony from Cindy 
M i l ler, Executive D irector of F irstlink, attachment #1, stating the purpose of 2-1-1. This is 
to ensure people have access to 24 hour information and referral about nonprofit human 
service and emergency resources as wel l  as l istening and support. 
(Other attachments provided by Sen. J .  Lee on behalf of others: # 2  Brian Kalk, Publ ic 
Service Commission; #3 Firstlink Nationa l  2-1-1 Awareness Day; #4  Arland H. 
Rasmussen, West Fargo Pol ice Dept.; and #5  Packet of letters in support of SB 2205.) 
The Un ited Way in  Cass County and Clay County in MN provides the funds for this 
program. There has to be some money on marketing so people know about this program .  
State funding has been received from the NO Dept of Health, Human Services, and 
Adjutant General's office, and other Un ited Way's around the state but this current state 
support wil l  end at the end of June 2013. The state support is important because ,  if we 
el iminate it, we wou ld be the only state without 2-1-1 service. 
Today (2-11) is national 2-1-1 awareness day. (7.19) 

Vice Chairman Bowman: This is a grant and ends in 2015. Do you see it as a contin u ing 
appropriation after 2015? 

Senator J. Lee: It should be a continuing appropriation and it should have been drafted 
that way. Cass County wi l l  make sure their contribution stays in place. This should be an 
ongoing appropriation and should not be a grant. We need to have i t  long term. 
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Senator Warner: It seems there is a quantum leap between mental health information and 
suicide prevention. Is there a point where you transfer out of th is system to a regular 
psych iatrist, when it stops being a publ ic service and when it becomes a medical thing? 

Sen. J. Lee: The folks that are trained to handle suicide cal ls do not do treatment. They 
learn how to chat with them and they wi l l  connect them with a menta l  health professional 
that wil l actual ly do the counsel ing that is needed. It means that it m ight i nterrupt the 
process for someone who is moving toward suicide if they can reduce the crisis level from 
that cal l .  Part of that information referral is connecting someone who does have a behavior 
issue or menta l  health crises with those professionals who can best help them.  

Senator Kilzer: I don't see th is particular item l isted on the 30 OARS that the health dept. 
has. Is this in addition to a l ine in their budget that's already in existence? 

Sen. J. Lee: I believe there is a l ine .  All th is particular b i l l  does is to maintain  the state 
support that we have had this last bienn ium. It isn't anyplace else .  I looked at how we 
could best address this because so many different agencies and departments are 
connected with 2-1-1 in  one way or another. It seems to me OMB would have been a good 
spot, but the health department, I believe, has a l ine item about suicide cal ls .  

Senator Kilzer: How do you arrive at the figure of 325,000? Is that in the present budget? 

Sen. J. Lee If you take al l  the various places from which support came, this is the shortfal l  
compared to what is avai lable in the governor's budget today. It's one lump sum; it 
combines the various places that provided funding last time in one way or another. 

Senator Wanzek Has there ever been any discussions with 2-1-1 to look at how we fund 
911? 

Sen. J. Lee I would be delighted if there was some ongoing source that you decided was 
appropriate. It is a very active and engaged board that works with F irstlink with this 
program finding revenues and resources ,  and they have not talked about a different source 
com ing from the state, but you might have a better idea . 

Senator Gary Lee If I cal l  into 911, and I should have cal led 2-1-1 is there any l ink 
between the two in terms of referral of that call? 

Sen. J. Lee They do not dupl icate one another. 911 is to cal l  pol ice and ambulance. This 
is not having anybody go out to do anyth ing .  This is referral, crisis conversations, so they 
are not the same. This could be a tool for the local ambulance service. 

Chairman Holmberg We wil l  not be passing this bi l l  out today. The hearing was closed 
on 2205. 
Testimony attached # 6 - Payments to F irst Link 2-1-1 submitted by OMB. 



2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2205 subcommittee 
February 13, 2013 

Job # 18907 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolutio 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation to the office of management and budget for a 
gra nt for admin istering 2-1-1 services. 

Minutes: 

Legislative Council - Becky J. Keller 
OMB - Lori Laschkewitsch 

Testimony attached # 1 

Senator Kilzer opened the hearing on SB 2205. Senator Grindberg and Senator 
Mathern were present. 

Senator Kilzer wanted to hear a bit more about past testimony. 

Lori Laschkewitsch explained attachment #1 - Payment to F irst Link 2-1-1. 

Senator Kilzer asked if the gambl ing money al located for 211 services is in  statute. 

Lori Laschkewitsch rep l ied that there are provisions in statute that al locate money for 
Gamblers Anonymous. 
The money i n  the adjutant general and the Human services was not specified in the 
budget. 
The Health Dept. was for the Appl ied Suicide Intervention Ski l ls Train ing - a general fund 
grant. 

Senator Kilzer asked if there is money in the present Health Dept. budget. 

Lori Laschkewitsch said there is money in the Health Dept. budget and is very likely this 
program would be a recipient again. The grant appl ications don't start unti l  the bienn ium 
and it wi l l  be dependent upon who appl ies. 

Senator Kilzer said there is $700,000 in present bienn ium. How much in next? 

Lori Laschkewitsch responded it wi l l  be $700,000 again. 

Senator Mathern asked if 2-1-1 is budgeting in a manner to get the $325,000 and the 
potentia l  g rant. 
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Lori Laschkewitsch said , based on Senator Judy Lee's testimony, the $325,000 amount 
was based on the amount of state dollars they had for this biennium . We appropriated 
$150,000 in the DHS budget as ongoing for the 13-15 biennium . 

Senator Kilzer and the Adjutant General said they'd only get 16,800? 

Lori Laschkewitsch The reason they got the add itional funding for 2011-13 was based on 
some of the emergencies l ike flood ing .  Those criteria fit to use the 2-1-1 for people who 
needed assistance during the flood . That money can't a lways be used. 

Senator Kilzer Prior to present bienn ium , we don't know much about their fund ing except 
what is in the testimony, is that right? 

Lori Laschkewitsch said that was correct. 
She then mentioned that in  the b i l l ,  the funding is being appropriated to OMB. It would be 
better to appropriate it to Human Services but Human Services is already g iving a grant to 
2-1-1. 

Senator Kilzer I'd l ike to see it there. We can go ahead and make that amendment. 

Senator Kilzer closed the hearing on SB 2205. 
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Senate Appropriations Committee 
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SB 2205 subcommittee 
February 21, 2013 

Job # 19308 

0 Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of billlreso 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation to the office of management and budget for a 
g rant for admin istering 2-1-1 services. 

Minutes: 

Legis lative Council - Becky J .  Keller 
OMB - Lori Laschkewitsch 

Testimony attached# 1-2 

Senator Kilzer opened the hearing on SB 2205. Senators Grindberg and Warner were 
present. 

Senator Kilzer - We have before us an amendment which replaces OMB with DHS on line 
6. 

Senator Grindberg moved the amendment. 

Lori Laschkewitsch, OMB - I bel ieve that Senator Judy Lee felt it should go to Human 
Services, so they have $150,000 currently in their budget. 

Senator Kilzer - Okay, that was going to be the next thing that we took up after we put this 
amendment on. 

Senator Kilzer .02001 amendment- voice vote carried and amendment adopted. 

Senator Kilzer - My next subject on this b i l l  is the other funding that is coming that wil l  be 
used for this purpose. 

Lori Laschkewitsch- This shows funding in the adjutant generals budget. The reason is 
that there could be other fund ing. (Attached #1) 

Senator Kilzer- Was this in the 2013-15, is that the amount that was requested? 

Lori Laschkewitsch - We just continued the funding that was in the 2011-13 budget. 

Senator Kilzer- Did they request an increase? 
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Lori Laschkewitsch- No they d id not. 

Senator Grindberg - My fingerprints are al l  over this from 2 years ago. It was the hodge 
podge to try and identify the fund ing.  It was the adjutant general's budget and then we 
d irected human services to find some money. The health department didn't do a very good 
job find ing any money so we took some of the adjutant genera l's money and made it work. 
I'm a supporter of the 211, what kind of convinced me is a CNN story that happened right 
after that horrific tornado in M issouri a year or 2 ago and the Governor stand ing at the 
pod ium saying it was 211 that made the response time and the effectiveness of helping 
those injured. (5:25) 

Senator Kilzer - Before we act I would like to go through the line item on the Health 
Department and explain the $162,000 and then not $162,000 for the upcoming bienn ium. 

Lori Laschkewitsch - The Health Department is fund ing under the assistant gra nt and the 
reason that it doesn't show funding for the 2013-15 biennium is it isn't something that is  
g ranted ahead of time. Once the budget is completed agencies can apply for the grants in 
the 2013-15 bienn ium . (6:20) 

Senator Kilzer - If they do get the $162,000, that wouldn't decrease the request of 
$325,000 would it? 

Lori Laschkewitsch- They're unrelated as it stands today. We put this money specifically 
in the agencies budget for 211 this time so that will continue as opposed to last b ienn ium 
where everybody was kind of scurrying and scrounging trying to find money to support 211. 

Senator Warner- You have 233,979 written on bottom which corresponds exactly with the 
dollar amount of an amendment that Senator Mathern had prepared that I don't think was 
ever offered . Can you explain what that number is? 

Lori Laschkewitsch - I believe the reason that was scribbled on there is just because I 
had made a photo copy for you and it was on there but I bel ieve the question had been 
asked as to what the d ifference in the current fund ing was the $174,000 as compared to 
the $325,000 of the bill. So I had done the math and that is what I ended up on that 
handout. 

Senator Warner- Did Senator Mathern distribute a .02002 amendment? (attached #2) 

Senator Kilzer - Brenda, can you explain to us, I think it was, there is a figure of $700,000 
some place related to suicide prevention in the Health Department, can you step up to the 
m icrophone and tel l  us about the Health Department? 

Brenda Weisz, Director of Accounting, Dept. of Health - We do have $700,000 for 
grants in  suicide prevention. (Gave an update on budget line) As Lori had mentioned 
depending on the outcome of the leg islative session , we do have that $700,000 continued 
from this bienn ium for suicide prevention granting and that the opportunity would be there 
again to work with F irst Link and we do provide them the funding for prevention gra nt 
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activities and the opportunity would present itself again in the upcoming bienn ium 
depending on the outcome of the legislative session.  

Senator Warner - I s  any money that you have in the Health Department used for 
treatment? 

Brenda Weisz - No treatment, just referral service. 

Senator Kilzer - My thought would be to keep the level of funding at the present bienn ium 
and that would be  to substitute the request i n  this bill with the $234,000. 

Senator Warner - The best I understand that is what Senator Mathern's amendment does. 

Senator Warner moved to rescind the first amendment and add the Mathern 
amendment 13.0444.02002 

Seconded by Senator Grindberg. 

A roll call vote was taken. Yea: 3 Nays: 0 

Senator Grindberg moved Do Pass as Amended. 

Seconded by Senator Warner. 

A roll call vote was taken. Yea: 3 Nays: 0 
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Senate Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room , State Capitol 

SB 2205 
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0 Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for a grant to administer 2-1-1 funds (Do Pass as Amended ) 

Min utes: See attached testimon 

Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on Thursday, February 
21, 2013. All committee members were present except Senator Mathern. 

Becky J. Keller-Legislative Council 
Sheila Peterson -OMB 

Senator Kilzer: 2205 is the suicide prevention line, the 2-1-1- or First Link, those are 
all the names that mean basically the same thing. This is the bill Judy lee testified on, 
she was the only testifier on it. The amendment should be numbered .02002 
Testimony attached# 1. That's just a technical correction over to Human Services. the 
other amendment is the price tag. That's what we are more concerned with . The 
request was for $325,000.00 and after doing a little realistic math we changed that to 

$233,979.00 and that brings it to the same level as the present biennium is, the First 

Link funding will receive that same amount in the next biennium that they had 

received in this biennium. 

I would move the amendment #13.0444.02002. 2"d by Senator Erbele. 

Vice Chairman Grind berg Discussion. All in favor say aye. Motion carries. 

Senator Kilzer: On the bill itself, on the second hand out, Testimony attached# 2 -
First link 2-1-1- Services you can see that on the left is the present biennium and on 

the right is the upcoming biennium and you can see the similarities and the 
differences in the funding. One thing that is not listed on here, the Health Department 
gave $162,000 to the present biennium and it is anticipated they will also give 
$162,000 in the upcoming biennium. They have a total of around $700,000 in grants 
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to be distributed and they have several suicide clients that they give money to among 
which is the First Linlc As you can see the Adjutant General had $88,000 and that 
was because of the flooding and things, and they have a base of$16,800 and that's the 
emergency criteria but if there is if anything happens that could be increased. 

Senator Kilzer moved a Do Pass as Amended on SB 2205. 2nd by Senator 

Robinson. 

Vice Chairman Grindberg : Discussion. Hearing none, call the roll on a Do Pass as 
Amended on SB 2205. 

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 12; Nay: 0; Absent: 1. 

Senator Kilzer will carry the bill. 

The hearing was closed on SB 2205. 



13.0444. 02002 
Title. 04000 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Mathern 

February 14, 2013 

PROPOSED AM ENDMENTS TO SE NATE BILL NO. 2205 

Page 1, line 1, replace "office of management and budget" with "departm e n t  of human 
services" 

Page 1, line 1, after the second "for" insert "providi n g" 

Page 1, line 5, replace "$325, 000" with "$233,979" 

Page 1, line 6, replace "office of management and budget" with "departm e n t  of human 
services" 

Ren um ber accordingly 

Page No. 1 



Date: d -;1/ -/3 
Roll Call Vote # / 

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. _ ..... ��""'-+'0'""'--S::;....___ 
Senate Appropriations Committee 

0 Check here for Conference Committee 

Leg islative Counci l  Amendment Number !3. OYL/£/. ()J DQ ;k 
Action Taken 

Motion Made By Seconded By 

Senators Yes No Senator Yes No 

Chariman Ray Holmberg Senator Tim Mathern 
Co-Vice Cha i rman Bil l Bowman Senator David O'Connell 
Co-Vice Chair Tony Grindberg Senator Larry Robinson 
Senator Ralph Kilzer Senator John Warner 
Senator Karen Krebsbach 
Senator Robert Erbele 
Senator Terry Wanzek 
Senator Ron Carlisle 
Senator Gary Lee 

Total (Yes) No 
----------------------------------------------------

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly ind icate i ntent: 
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2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. dd OS 
Senate Appropriations Committee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken 

Motion Made By -(� !? J '  . , Seconded By L� 

Senators Yes No Senator Yes No 

Chariman Ray Holmberg ,_./' Senator Tim Mathern A 
Co-Vice Chairman Bill Bowman y Senator David O'Connel l  J/ 
Co-Vice Chair Tony Grindberg /j/' / Senator Larry Robinson y 
Senator Ralph Kilzer '// Senator John Warner Jt-, 
Senator Karen Krebsbach / 
Senator Robert E rbele ,/'/ 
Senator Terry Wanzek ,// 
Senator Ron Carlisle "j/'/ 
Senator Gary Lee y 

Total (Yes) __ _;_/-=-A---+-, ____ No __ 0 ___ ___ _ __ _ 

Absent 
----��-- ------------�-----------------------------------r>.KJJi�-'.J:iiJ� � ----Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 22, 201 3  9:37am 

Mod ule ID:  s_stcomrep_34_008 
Carrier: Krebsbach 

Insert LC: 1 3.0444.02002 Title: 04000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2205: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) recommends 

AMEN DMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended , recommends DO PASS 
(1 2 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTI NG). SB 2205 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  replace "office of management and budget" with "department of h u man 
services" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  after the second "for" insert "providing" 

Page 1 ,  line 5,  replace "$325, 000" with "$233, 979" 

Page 1 ,  line 6, replace "office of management and budget" with "department of h u man 
services" 

Ren umber according ly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_34_008 
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Fort Union Room, State Capitol 

SB 2205 
March 26, 2013 

Job #20479 

0 Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk S ignature 

Explanation or reason for introduction 

To provide an appropriation to the DHS for providing a grant for administering 2-1-1 
services. 

Minutes: See Testimonies #1and 2 

Chairman Weisz opened the hearing on SB 2205. 

Sen. Judy Lee: From District 13 in West Fargo introduced and sponsored the bill. I'm 
familiar with the services of 2-1-1 and a strong supporter of what they do. They provide 
information and referral services and remarkable in disaster assistance through floods. The 
2-1-1 service has been able to direct people to the sources they need. They have suicide 
call responders. The original bill was $325,000 and then Senate Appropriations got a hold 
of this and got information from OMB which dealt with only what was appropriated and not 
additional dollars that was provided by other sources. Actually the $233,979 is not the 
number it takes to hold even with what we provided last time. If we don't fund this on a 
statewide basis, 2-1-1 will no longer continue to be a statewide service. 

4:54 
Cindy Miller: Executive Director of Firstlink testified in support of the bill. (See Testimony 
#1) 

14:20 
Chairman Weisz: Do you have a breakdown of your funding sources since 2012? 

Miller: I can get that for you. We get $170,000 a year from the United Way of Cass Clay 
and then the others are the services through different state departments or through 
contracts and agencies we have contracts with. 

Chairman Weisz: Why is the funding going away from the department? 

Miller: We've never had it. We added on an enhance piece. We have had to add on more 
data base people. We are getting more calls. We have more expenses now. 

Chairman Weisz: You indicated that the funding from the department is going away. 
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Miller: We don't have a contract with them for next year. 

Rep. Porter: I would like to see a regular income statement with revenue in and expenses 
out, the total number of employees and the location and how many employees are part of 
the operation and how does the partnership work with the national hotline? Is that a 
revenue producer for you or is it something you have decided to align yourself with? 

Miller: We get $3,000 a year to be part of the National Suicide Prevention Life Line. It is not 
revenue producing by any means. 

Rep. Porter: How many total employees are part of the operation? 

Miller: We have 8 full time and 1 0 part time and we run 24/7. 

Rep. Mooney: How do you manage with 24n with the limited staff that you have? 

Miller: We are busy. We have been doing this for 40 some years so I think we do it well. 

Rep. Mooney: Do they work by remote or have to come into the office? 

Miller: They have to be on site. 

Rep. Mooney: You also contract with other counties? 

Miller: Some counties we have disaster assistance specifically for us. FEMA always refer 
people to 2-1-1 when there is a disaster. 

Rep. Mooney: The suicide hotline here is the only one? 

Miller: No, there is a national prevention suicide hotline is the 1-800 number. We ask 
people to call that number. 

Rep. Silbernagel: Are you finding the increased calls coming generally across the state or 
from one area versus another. 

Miller: Ward County when they had disasters, but generally across the state. 

Vice-Chair Hofstad: You talked about various contacts with social service to provide crisis 
support after hours. Can you tell me what prograr:ns the social services have and the ones 
you have? 

Miller: We have six contracts with other agencies. (Inaudible) crisis center, CVIC from 
Grand Forks, UNO counseling center, NDSU counseling center, Southeast Human Service 
Center, Region IV which is on the edge of Minnesota. We answer after hours, weekends 
and holidays for them. 

Vice-Chair Hofstad: Are those callers referred back to the human service centers? 
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Miller: Yes, unless a crisis at the moment. Some people want us to transfer every call to 
make sure that everything is ok. Southeast lets us handle all calls accept if they are 
suicidal. 

24:16 
Brian Kalk: Public Service Commission Chairman: Testified in support of the bill. (See 
Testimony #2) 

NO OPPOSITION 

Chairman Weisz closed the hearing on SB 2205. 
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0 Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Minutes: 

Chairman Weisz: Discussion on SB 2205. 

Representative Mooney: I move to bring SB 2205 back to the orig inal  status that it was 
and that they say they are losing the funding.  Seconded by Representative Oversen. 

Representative Porter: I am going to resist the amendment and support the bi l l  in its 
present form so that it's a un ified approach from the Senate and the House and the funding 
for the program .  This is a necessary program and g iven our stake inside of it  that we've got 
the number. 

Chairman Weisz: They dropped it because they hadn't taken i nto account that add itional 
one time grant of $100,000 that they received from the department. They were only looking 
at the normal funding that they were going to replace. 

A Voice vote taken was taken. Motion failed. 

Representative Porter: I move a Do Pass and Re-refer to Appropriations 58 2205. 
Seconded by Representative Si lbernagel. 

A Do Pass Roll call vote on Engrossed 58 2205 and Re-referred to Appropriations: 
Yes= 12, No= 0, Absent= 1. Carrier: Representative Anderson . 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2205, as engrossed: Human Services Committee (Rep. Weisz, Chairman) 

recommends DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee 
( 1 2  YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTI NG). Engrossed SB 2205 was 
rereferred to the Appropriations Committee. 
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2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

House Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

SB 2205 
4/2/13 

Job# 20772 

D Conference Committee 

C om m ittee C lerk Signature � 
Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation to the department of human services for 
providing a grant for administering 2-1-1 services. 

Minutes: Handout #1 

Chairman Delzer called the committee back to order. 

Rep. Robin Weisz, District 14: Introduced the bill. Appropriated $233,979 to Firstlink. First 
Link is the 211 service that is provided by First Link and it is a statewide service. They had 
been receiving funding from both Department of Health Human Services for $233,979 and 
that funding is going away. It was not part of the ongoing budget. I have letters here from 
virtually everybody saying they do a good job. 

01:40 
Chairman Delzer: Did you ask where the money came from to pay for it? 

Rep. Weisz: (See handout #1) A lot of it was being funded by Cass County. They're based 
in Fargo, and they're contracting with Cass County currently for services. In 2012, they lost 
$21,000. from the services they provided. They do fundraisers, United Way gives those 
funds. Went over the handout. The PFC, EMS, Insurance Commissioner all were in 
support but nobody was stepping up to the plate. 

Chairman Delzer: Was the health department there? 

Rep. Weisz: They were noticeably absent. 

Chairman Delzer: We'll have to check, there may still be some funding still in the budget for 
these. 

Rep. Weisz: That could be correct. Your committee felt based on all the testimony they are 
providing a statewide service that I think we do need to provide funding. Money came 
versus the Minot flood they are still receiving calls. 

Chairman Delzer: Did you ask how long we've been doing the 2-1-1? 
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Rep. Weisz: It was 2005 or 2007 that MHA said they would no longer be able to perform 
those services. Firstlink was asked to take it on, and they've been doing it ever since. 

Chairman Delzer: Will you leave us a copy of their budget. Questions by the committee? 

Rep. Nelson: When Firstlink went statewide, they didn't have the revenue stream to do that 
with did they? 

Rep. Weisz: They initially got $170,000 grant from DHS or DOH to help that go forward. 
Went over the handout again. 

Chairman Delzer: That would be federal money? 

Rep. Weisz: It doesn't break it down. The adjutant General's dropped by roughly $72,000. 
DHS stays the same. The Health Departments $162,000 disappears completely. 

OMS Tammy Dolan confirmed that. 

Chairman Delzer: Why did OMS pull the money out of the health department? 

Dolan: The $162,000 that had been received is a grant that the organization applied for and 
received. Within the health department there is a $700,000 appropriation item for suicide 
grants, and Firstlink can apply for it, but it is competitive so there is no guarantee they 
would receive it. That is why they show a zero right now. 

Rep. Skarphol; who received in this biennium from that funding source? Is that general 
funding? 

Dolan: I can get that information for you. 

Chairman Delzer: Rep. Weisz were you aware of any of these? 

Rep. Weisz: I was aware that there was a $700,000 for suicide grants. That is why we 
have this bill because it was for stable funding. At this point they do not have the funding 
yet the state agencies are saying we want 211 services. They can go back to just doing 
county wide 211. 

8:40 
Chairman Delzer: Didn't we pass another bill on suicide lately on the floor? 

Rep. Williams: Regardless of what were those federal pass-through dollars that they were 
using in the past? 

Dolan: I know in the case of the Adjutant General the funds were from a federal grant they 
had received. They were available in the current biennium; they do not anticipate they will 
be available in the second biennium because funding is being reduced. DHS looks like 
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$150,000 was from the general fund and $7,200 was other funds; I am guessing that was 
federal dollars but I am not certain of that. 

Chairman Delzer: Did you have any questions about their timing, the use of this 2-1-1? 
How many total calls come in? 

Rep. Weisz: It's used 24/7/365 days a year. I believe there were 39,623 callers during the 
last year. They answered 1416 calls just related to suicides. It was from 51 counties in NO. 
We did not ask about the time of day that calls come in. They also take emergency calls 
after hours for SE Human Service Center so that when they close for the day they answer 
the calls and they direct those persons to whatever source they need to go to. They provide 
services for suicide, counseling, reference, and refer them to the correct area, such as the 
police. 

Chairman Delzer: Do they get any of the quit line calls? 

Rep. Weisz: I assume they would just send them on because that is an 800 number. 

Rep. Hawken: If people would like to learn more about it they can go on line at 
www. myfirstlink.org has history and lots of information. 13:00 

Chairman Delzer: Who does advertising for 2-1-1? It is on big time right now. 

Rep. Weisz: It's not generally Firstlink, it's an agency trying to promote its use. 

Chairman Delzer: At one point we were using lottery money for gaming addiction and some 
other things. Are they putting any money into 211? 

Dolan: Not to my knowledge, but I can check on that. 

Rep. Brandenburg: Who's paying for that? 

Chairman Delzer: I would imagine it's probably being spent by the lottery commission for 
the ads for those because it is dealing strictly with gaming. 

Rep. Grande: Part of the gaming tax goes to Gamblers Anonymous and for the advertising 
and such. I think this 2-1-1 is probably PSAs. 

Chairman Delzer: I don't think they were PSAs. 

Rep. Weisz: Individual agencies may mention the service they are using. 

Rep. Brandenburg: The general fund shouldn't be paying for Gamblers Anonymous; it 
should be coming out of Gaming money. 

Chairman Delzer: Most of that is but we need that list from you Tammy Dolan. I'm pretty 
sure we did some addiction counseling out of that, too. Further questions? 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A Bill for an Act to provide an appropriation to the department of human services for 
providing a grant for administering 2-1-1 services. 

Minutes: Attached amendments 13.0444.04001 

Chairman Delzer: This bill would appropriate $233,979 to DHS for providing a grant to an 
organization for administering statewide 2-1-1 services. We found out that the adjutant 
general used to have $88,000 of federal and it going down to $16,000, human services still 
has $157,000 in it, and the health department had $162,000. 

Rep. Bellew: The human services money is $150,000 out of the general fund and $7,000 
for federal funds. The health department was all federal funds. They didn't get that money 
back. 

Chairman Delzer: When you say federal, it was a competitive federal grant or was this a 
grant that went out to all states to start that? 

Lori Laschkewitsch, OMB: The health department has $700,000 of general funds for 
suicide grants and they 2-1-1 services in the current biennium had received $162,000 of 
that. 

Chairman Delzer: They could still apply for this grant from that $700,000? 

Lori Laschkewitsch: That's correct. The reason it is not committed to 2-1-1 is because 
those get committed after the start of the biennium so it is very likely they may get that 
again but they need to apply for it. 

Chairman Delzer: If they did that they would get that $162,000 plus probably apply for that 
grant for whatever they wanted on top of that? Giving them this money would not preclude 
them from applying for that health department grant? 

Lori Laschkewitsch: That is correct. That is why this was amended down from $325,000 
in the original appropriation in anticipation of them probably receiving this $162,000 grant. 
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Chairman Delzer: That isn't $162,000; it's only $102,000. Do you know where the 
$88,000 is that was in the adjutant general's money that will now only be $16,000? 

Lori Laschkewitsch: That was in the adjutant general money and it was disaster flood 
money so it could only been utilized because there had been a disaster so that money 
wouldn't be available to them in the 2013-15 biennium unless there is a disaster or flooding 
again. It was only one time funding. 

Rep. Skarphol: I had those numbers written down, but for the department of human 
services I had written down last time was $157,200 and $150,000 was general fund and I 
have $152,200 this time. 

Lori Laschkewitsch: $157,200. 

Rep. Skarphol: The grant from the health department was $162,000 but they are showing 
it as zero. That's the $700,000 you talked about that they could conceivably get again? 

Lori Laschkewitsch: They could conceivably get the $162,000 again if they applied for it. 

Chairman Delzer: Can you tell us where the $700,000 went from the current biennium? 

Lori Laschkewitsch: I could but it is a very lengthy list. 

Chairman Delzer: Is that whole list on there? I guess we have that; it was distributed at 
the last discussion on this bill. What are your wishes? 

Rep. Skarphol: If they can go back to health and get $162,000, the only difference 
between last biennium and this is the difference in the money from the adjutant general. 
There is $71,900 so why would we put $233,000 in here is their need is $71,900? I would 
hope we would reduce that number. 

Rep. Nelson: One of the handouts we got shows a loss of $21,475 in 2012 year to date. 

Chairman Delzer: I believe Rep. Hawken referenced that. If we change this to $100,000, it 
would probably give them the coverage plus another $21,000 or $22,000. 

Rep. Hawken: This group now does almost the entire state. They have an inordinate 
number of calls for suicide prevention and for a number of other things. They do it on a 
shoestring and with a ton of volunteers. This is preventive. If we fund an organization that 
does what 2-1-1 does, people don't end up in the hospital where they cost us more. It's an 
amazing service for the state of North Dakota for very little money. At some point you need 
to invest in programs that do good things. It saves lives and it's a minuscule amount of 
money. 

Chairman Delzer: The essence is that they've done this through the flood service; we're 
trying to get to the amount of money they need to continue on. Everyone agrees that the 2-
1-1 is a fine set up. 
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Rep. Bellew: Does the 2-1-1 line get any gambling money? 

Chairman Delzer: That was funded by the department of human services. 

Lori Laschkewitsch: $7,200 of the gambling money goes to 2-1-1. 

Chairman Delzer : How much do human services get of the gambling money? 

Lori Laschkewitsch: $400,000. 

Chairman Delzer: $7,000 goes there so where does the rest of the money go? 

Lori Laschkewitsch: It's for the counseling services they provide. 

Chairman Delzer: What are your wishes? 

Rep. Skarphol: Made a motion to reduce the number to $125,000. 

Rep. Pollert: Seconded. 

Rep. Skarphol : That more than doubles the loss reflected here. It takes them through the 
biennium and hopefully they won't have the issues they did last biennium. 

Chairman Delzer: We would hope the health department would fund the $162,000 as a 
minimum. 

VOICE VOTE: MOTION CARRIES. 

Rep. Pollert: Made a motion for a Do Pass as Amended. 

Rep. Holman: Seconded. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: 19 YES 2 NO 1 ABSENT 
MOTION CARRIED FOR DO PASS AS AMENDED. 

Rep. Glassheim will carry this bill. 

Rep. Skarphol: I would request that I be notified as to the amount of the grant they get 
from the health department. Maybe the entire committee would like that too. I would like 
to know if they get that $162,000 or if they give them $112,000 to offset the increase we 
gave them. 

Chairman Delzer : Lori and Becky, can you make note of that? Can we pass that request 
on to the health department not with the essence of it but how much of that grant they get? 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE B ILL NO. 2205 

Page 1 ,  l ine 5, replace "$233,979" with "$ 1 25 ,000" 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMEN DMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2205 - Department of Human Services - House Action 

Executive Senate 
Budget Version 

Grant for 2-1-1 services $233,979 

Total all funds $0 $233,979 
Less estimated income 0 0 

General fund $0 $233,979 

FTE 0.00 0.00 

House 
Changes 

($108 ,979) 

($108,979) 
0 

($108,979) 

0.00 

House 
Version 

$1 25,000 

$1 25,000 
0 

$1 25,000 

0.00 

Department No. 325 - Department of Human Services - Detail of House Changes 

Grant for 2-1-1 services 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Reduces 
Funding for 

Grant 1 
($1 08,979) 

($1 08,979) 
0 

($1 08,979) 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

($108 979) 

($108,979) 
0 

($1 08,979) 

0.00 

1 Funding is reduced from $233, 879 for a grant to an organization for administering statewide 2-1 -1 
services. 

Page No. 1 1 3 .0444 .04001 
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Roll Cal l  Vote #: ____ _ 

House Appropriations 

201 3 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. Z/WS 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Counci l  Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken : D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended [X] Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By �ff. 5kq.rfhco\ Seconded By �'---r·-�=o...:...:l�>LJWf_._ ____ 
_ 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Chairman Delzer Rep. Streyle 
Vice Chairman Kempen ich Rep. Thoreson 
Rep. Bel lew Rep. Wieland 
Rep. Brandenburg 
Rep. Dosch 
Rep. Grande Rep. Boe 
Rep. Hawken Rep. Glassheim 
Rep. Kreidt Rep. Guggisberg 
Rep. Mart inson Rep. Holman 
Rep_. Monson Rep. Wil l iams 
Rep. Nelson 
Rep. Pollert 
Rep. Sanford 
Rep. Skarphol 

Total Yes No 
-----------------------------------------

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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House Appropriations 

201 3 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. �7,oJ 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Counci l Amendment Number I 3 .  6 '/Ulf .. (.) Lf" D { 

Committee 

Action Taken: � Do Pass D Do Not Pass IRJ Amended D Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By -l.&l..l.4tf(lf-=-·---!fL'-l.Lo.!.::\lu�t _____ Seconded By R-tf· tklman 
Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Chairman Delzer X Rep_. Streyle X 
Vice Chairman Kempenich 'X Rep. Thoreson X' 
Rep. Bellew )( Rep. Wieland X'" 
Rep. Brandenburg Y. 
Rep. Dosch \1. 
Rep. Grande )( Rep. Boe 
Rep. Hawken )(' Rep. Glassheim X 
Rep. Kreidt x Rep. Guggisberg K 
Rep. Martinson x Rep. Holman X 
Rep. Monson >( Rep. Wil l iams )( 
Rep. Nelson I )( 
Rep. Pollert X. 
ReQ. Sanford X_ 
Rep. Skarphol � 

Total Yes 
______ / 4� _____ 

No �1�--------------
Absent 

Floor Assignment 

I f  the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
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Module ID: h_stcomrep_62_010 
Carrier: Glassheim 

Insert LC: 13.0444.04001 Title: 05000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2205, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS ( 1 9  YEAS, 2 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTI NG).  Eng rossed SB 2205 
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  l ine 5, replace "$233, 979" with "$125,000" 

Renumbe r  accord ingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2205 - Department of Human Services - House Action 

Executive 
Budget 

Grant for 2-1-1 services 

Total all funds $0 
Less estimated income 0 

General fund $0 

FTE 0.00 

Senate 
Version 

$233,979 

$233,979 
0 

$233,979 

0.00 

House 
Changes 

($108,979) 

($108,979) 
0 

($108,979) 

0.00 

House 
Version 

$125,000 

$1 25,000 
0 

$1 25,000 

0.00 

Department No. 325 - Department of Human Services - Detail of House Changes 

Grant for 2-1-1 services 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Reduces 
Funding for 

Grant ' 

($108,979) 

($108,979) 
0 

($108,979) 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

($108 979) 

($108,979) 
0 

($108,979) 

0.00 

1 Funding is reduced from $233, 879 for a g rant to an organization for administering 
statewide 2-1 -1 services. 
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Senate Human Services Committee 
Red River Room, State Capitol 

SB 2205 
4/16/13 
21178 

� Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

To provide an appropriation to the office of management and budget for a g ra nt for 
admin istering 2-1-1 services. 

Minutes: 

Sen .  J. Lee,  Sen . Dever, Sen. Axness are present 
Rep. Weisz, Rep. Kiefert, Rep . Oversen are present 

You may make reference to "attached testimony." 

Sen. J. Lee opens the Conference Committee for SB 2205 

Rep. Weiz d iscusses funding for SB 2205, if there is no g rant. 

There is a d iscussion about the grant fund ing . 

There is a d iscussion of what agency to put 2-1-1 under. 

Sen. Dever asks for clarification on the fund ing . 

Sen. Dever asks wh ich version was introduced . 

There is a d iscuss ion on who is funding 2-1-1. 

There is a d iscussion about how to move forward and reschedul ing the conference 
Committee.  

Sen. J Lee closes the conference committee. 
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[gl Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

To provide an appropriation to the office of management and budget for a grant for 
admin istering 2-1-1 services . 

Minutes: 

Sen . J. Lee , Sen . Dever, Sen .  Axness 
Rep. Weisz, Rep. Kiefert, Rep. Oversen. 

You may make reference to "attac 

Sen. J. lee opens the conference committee on SB 2205 

Sen. J.  Lee discusses about 2-1-1 and a message from Arvy Smith from the department 
of health. Attachment #1 

Arvy Smith is recogn ized . Rep. Weisz asks for clarification on the grants and fund ing .  Rep. 
Weisz asks what of the $700,000 is used for. Sen. J. lee asks for clarification of the 
$700,000 how it's spent. Arvy Smith provides add itional i nformation for the committee see 
attachment #2 and #3. 

Sen. J. Lee states that it should be general fund and states it's an important program.  

Rep. Weisz shares has his opin ion on  SB 2205 

There is d iscussion who is and who doesn't pay for 2-1-1. 

There is a d iscussion on the $150,000 of the funding that is coming DHS general funds.  

There is a d iscussion how to move forward with SB 2205 

There is d iscussion about Un ited Way Cass County donating money for 2-1-1 and fund ing 
the program.  

Sen. J lee discusses talks about a l l  the services throughout the state that use 2-1-1 



Senate Human Services Committee 
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Sen. J lee closes the conference committee SB 2205 



2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Senate Human Services Committee 
Red River Room, State Capitol 

SB 2205 
4/25/13 
21510 

[2J Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature � C,: 
---

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

To provide an appropriation to the office of management and budget for a grant for 
admin istering 2-1-1 services. 

Minutes: 

Sens . J Lee, Dever, Axness are present 
Reps Weisz, Kiefert, Oversen are present 

"Attached testimony." 

Sen. J Lee . Opens the committee conference for SB 2205 

Rep. Weisz d iscusses proposed amendments attachment #1. 

Sen. J. Lee discusses the funding. 

There is a d iscussion on which version would be amended. 

Sen. Dever asks about suicide prevention services. 

Rep. Weisz discusses attachment #2 and suicide prevention. 

There is a discussion who would take ownership of 2-1-1 

Sen. J. Lee discusses the public services commission and 2-1-1 

Sen. Dever asks for clarification on funding. 

Sen. J. Lee asks the committee if there is any consideration on language Arvy Smith 
proposed. Attachment #3 

Rep. Weisz motions House amendments and amend 

Rep. Kiefert seconds 



Senate Human Services Committee 
SB 2205 
4/25/1 3 
Page 2 

6 yes 
0 no 
0 absent 

Motion Carries 

Senator Carrier Sen. J. Lee 
House Carrier Rep. Weisz 

Sen. J. closes the conference committee SB 2205 



1 3.0444.04002 
Title. 06000 Representative Weisz /I April 24, 201 3  u� 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for qD 

'? 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BI LL NO.  2205 y_...-)-S .--\/ 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1 209 and 1 2 1 0  of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1 269 and 1 270 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bil l 
No. 2205 be amended as fol lows: 

Page 1 ,  line 5, replace "$233,979" with "$285,000" 

Page 1 ,  line 7, after "services" insert "that include suicide prevention services" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 1 3 .0444. 04002 



Date Lf - ZS- f3  
Roll Call Vote # _ _,_/ __ _ 

2013 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2800 as (re) engrossed 

Senate Human Services Committee 

Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 

D HOUSE recede from House amendments 

cfi}-HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as fol lows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and 
a new committee be appointed 

Motion Made by: � \A 1 e,; L' 

Senators 

Sen. J .  Lee 

Sen. Dever 

Sen. Axness 

Tota l Senate Vote 
............ �'-'---�-

Vote Count Yes: __ __,&t::..__ 
Senate Carrier J1... -:1 �e£ 
LC Number 

LC Number 

Seconded by:�.p �< I e.j7_£Rt: 
Representatives No 

. Weisz 

. Kiefert 

. Oversen 

· Total Rep. Vote 

Absent: No: _ _,_0.....,:::;___ 
-----

House Carrier � \tJB�Df.r 
OS 00 ? . 

of amendment 

of engrossment 
----------



Com Conference Committee Report 
April 25, 2013 1:41pm 

Module 10:  s_cfcomrep_74_001 

Insert LC: 13.0444.04002 

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
SB 2205, as engrossed : Your conference committee (Sens. J .  Lee, Dever, Axness and 

Reps. Weisz, Kiefert, Oversen) recommends that the HOUSE RECEDE from the 
House amendments as pri nted on SJ pages 1 209-1 2 1 0, adopt amend ments as 
follows, and place S B  2205 on the Seventh order: 

That the H ouse recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1 209 and 1 2 1  0 of the 
Senate Journal and pages 1 269 and 1 270 of the House Journal and that Eng rossed Senate 
Bill No. 2205 be amended as fol lows: 

Page 1 ,  l ine 5, replace "$233, 979" with "$285,000" 

Page 1 ,  line 7 ,  after "services" insert "that include suicide prevention services" 

Renumber accord ingly 

Eng rossed SB 2205 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 

( 1 )  DESK (2) COMMITIEE Page 1 s_cfcomrep_74_001 
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Get Connected. Get Answers. 

What services does Firstlink offer? 

Firstlink operates North Dakota's 2-1 -1 Helpl ine and is the only cal l  center to answer the 

National Sui cide Prevention Lifeline in North Dakota. 

24 hours a day Firstli nk provides: 
Listening and s u pport- a nonjudgmental, supportive, l istening ear 

I nformation and referral- about non profit/government h u man serv i ce resources and 

vol u nteer opportunities 

Common referral topics incl ude, but are not l imited to: 

• Abuse/Assault 
• Addictions 
• Disabil ities 
• Disasters 
• Education 
• Emergency Shelters 
• Financial Assistance 
• Health Care 
• Mental Health 
• Mi l itaryNeteran Support 
• Substance Abuse 
• Support Groups 
• Volunteer Opportunities 

Who needs F i rstli nk? 

• All people . . .  anytime, anywhere in North Dakota. 
• People seeking information and community resources. 
• People who are experiencing financial hardship. 
• People with mental health concerns. 
• People from rural communities where fewer resources may be avai lable. 
• People from large communities where many resources may be avai lable. 

., 

Continue � 



Firstli n k  makes a differen ce: (Statistics from 201 2) 

• Firstlink 2-1 -1 deescalated hundreds of callers who were suicidal and needed a safe place 
to cal l to collaborate on a safety plan. 

• These cal ls saved North Dakota law enforcement, fire departments, d ispatch centers, and 
EMT's hundreds of hours of time. By call ing Firstlink, these departments were not called to 
d ispatch help for welfare checks or spend time deescalating citizens. 

• Firstlink 2-1 -1 g ives social services agencies a place for their clients to call for l istening and 
support on evenings and weekends. 

• Firstlink 2-1 -1 gave shelter and financial information to help keep citizens safe and off the 
streets. 

• Firstlink 2-1 -1 gave out over 1 8 ,700 resources. 
• Firstlink 2- 1 -1 gave hope to 39,623 callers who needed assistance. 
• Firstlink received 1 ,41 6 calls related to suicide on al l phone l ines. 
• Firstlink received calls from 5 1  North Dakota counties in 201 2 . 

Firstli nk's funding sources: 

One of Firstlink's main funding sources has been through the United Way of Cass-Ciay. They 
have and will continue to support Firstlink's 2-1 -1 Helpline, Suicide Lifel ine and suicide support 
services for the Cass-Ciay communities. In the past, 2-1-1 statewide funding has been received 
from the North Dakota Department of Health, North Dakota Department of Human Services, 
North Dakota Adjutant General 's office, funders, donors, and other United Ways from across the 
state. The current state support ends June 30, 201 3 . The demand for services provided by 
Firstlink to North Dakota residents continues to increase, while funding decreases. 

Why should the state invest i n  Firstli n k  2-1 -1 ? 

North Dakota's 2-1 -1 statewide service is in jeopardy without state funding . 2-1 -1 is a free, easy 
to remember three dig it phone number that is available 24/7 to the ENTIRE state of North 
Dakota. Now is the time to invest in Firstlink. This wil l  ensure al l citizens have the ability to talk 
with a nonjudgmental person who can provide information on services available to them . 
Firstlink is also connected to the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline. Al l Firstlink staff are 
trained in suicide intervention skil ls .  Firstlink is the only call center in the state of North Dakota 
which takes calls on this designated suicide l ifeline. This national network assures that no cal l 
for help goes unanswered .  

Firstli nk H istory 

Firstlink's original helpline was incorporated in 1 971 to ensure people have 24 hour l istening, 
support, information, and referral about nonprofit human service resources . In 201 0, the Public 
Service Commission designated Firstlink as the 2-1 -1 provider for the entire state of North 
Dakota. Firstlink had previously subcontracted with Mental Health America North Dakota 
(MHAND) to take 2-1 -1 calls for Cass County, North Dakota. 

Firstlink's mission is to assist people in identifying , accessing, and making effective use of 
community and volunteer resources. 



Get Connected. GetAnswers. 

Chairman Lee and members of the Senate Human Services Committee.  I am Cindy M i l ler, 

Executive Director of Firstlink. I am here today to ask you to support SB #2205 requesting 

$325 ,000 in funding for the upcoming biennium for the purpose of supporting and maintaining 

Firstlink's 2-1 -1 helpl ine service statewide. 

Firstlink's Helpl ine was incorporated in 1 971 and continues to ensure people have access to 24 

hour information and referral about nonprofit human service and emergency resources as well 

as l istening and support. The Public Service Commissioners designated Firstlink the 2-1 -1 

provider for the entire state of North Dakota in 201 0 .  (Previously we answered 2-1 -1 ca l ls for 

Cass County only.) When concerned groups gathered ,  to discuss funding and awareness of 

2-1 -1 , the stories we heard about the importance of continuing 2-1 - 1  was overwhelming. These 

agencies stepped up and told us over and over again how essential 2-1 -1 service is to the 

citizens of North Dakota . Whether someone has a gambl ing problem, you are facing a d isaster 

in your community, you are feel ing suicidal , you need to register your drug prescription 

information with the North Dakota I nsurance Department, you need military, veteran and family 

support, or Crime Victim notification from North Dakota SAVIN ,  Firstlink is working to help a l l  of 

these state departments. 

This is why I am here today! This service is our mission and passion and has been for over 40 

years. Firstlink is a highly qual ified 2-1 -1 call center. With certifications in American 

Association of Suicidology (AAS), All iance of I nformation and Referral Systems (AIRS), and al l 

staff are trained in Applied Suicide I ntervention Ski l ls Training (ASIST) . 90% of the United 

States can dial 2-1 - 1  and be connected with a local call center. This is a l ife long resource, that 

we are blessed to have in North Dakota. 

It seems everyone is concerned about someth ing these days. We are fi l led with thoughts 

about losing our homes, jobs, retirement packages, freedom, and natural disasters. However, 

since Firstlink 2-1 -1 is here 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year to provide 

resources and referrals to cal lers, we have the abi l ity to make getting help much easier. 

When it comes to d isaster services, Firstlink has contracts with local counties and cities to 

assist them during disasters .  Firstlink has the ability to assist as needed in d isasters through 

contracts and through 2-1 - 1 . Firstlink 2-1 - 1  can assist callers who have experienced a 

d isaster and are in need of resources and referrals to help them get through such d ifficu l t  t imes. 

Year round, Firstlink understands that when basic needs are met, people are better able to 



cope with d isaster. Therefore, by provid ing referrals for basic needs and by empowering 

cal lers, Firstlink 2-1 -1 helps strengthen the resilience of our state. We can also help connect 

volunteers with opportunities to serve during disasters and year round. 

Who needs F irstlink? 

All people . . .  anywhere in North Dakota anytime! 

People who need resources and referrals 

People who need help during t imes of crisis 

People who are negatively impacted by the economy 

People with mental health issues 

People from rural communities where fewer resources may be avai lable 

People from large communities where many resources are available 

Where does F i rstlink 2-1 -1 currently receive most of its funding? 

Firstlink's main funding source has been through the United Way of Cass-Ciay. They have and 

wi l l  continue to support Fi rstlink's 2-1 - 1  Helpl ine, Suicide Lifel ine, and su icide services for the 

Cass-Ciay communities. Firstlink has contracts with Cass County, Clay County, and the Cities 

of Fargo ,  Moorhead and West Fargo to provide d isaster services. They also have contracts with 

various human service agencies to provide crisis support after hours .  Currently 2-1 -1 statewide 

funding has been received from the North Dakota Department of Health, North Dakota 

Department of Human Services, the Adjutant General 's Office, and other Un ited Ways from 

across the state. But this current state support is done J une 30, 201 3 . The demand for 

services provided by Firstlink to North Dakota residents continues to increase, while funding is 

not secured for the next biennium.  . 

Why shou ld the state invest in Firstlink 2-1 - 1 ? 

North Dakota's 2-1 -1 statewide service is in jeopardy without state funding . 

Now is the time to invest in Firstlink 2-1 - 1 . This wil l assure that al l citizens have information 

about services avai lable to them, including d isaster preparation and rel ief services. 

At the moment North Dakota's 2-1 -1 service also benefits from Firstlink's partnership with the 

National Suicide Prevention Lifel ine 1 -800-273-8255 (TALK). At Firstlink all call specialists that 

answer 2-1 - 1  also answer the National Suicide Prevention Lifel ine. Therefore, Firstlink 2-1 -1 

ca l l  special ists are not on ly trained in information and referral ,  but a lso in crisis and suicide 

prevention .  Firstlink has found this train ing to be s ignificantly beneficial since 2-1 -1 cal lers can 

suddenly admit they are having suicidal thoughts. Firstlink is the only call center in the state of 

North Dakota that takes calls in this network. The national network assures that no cal l for help 

goes unanswered. 

#-! 



I n  201 2:  Firstlink deescalated hundred's of callers who were suicidal and needed a safe place 

to cal l  to collaborate on a safety plan. These calls saved North Dakota law enforcement, fire 

departments, d ispatch centers , and EMT's hundred's of hours of time. By cal l ing Firstlink these 

departments did not need to d ispatch help for welfare checks, or spend time deescalat ing 

citizens. 

Firstlink answered 1 ,41 6 calls related to su icide on al l phone l ines. 

Firstlink also contracted to provide significant flood relief support services .  

Firstlink 2-1 -1 g ives social service agencies a place for their clients to call for crisis support on 

even ings and weekends. 

Firstlink 2-1 - 1  gave shelter and fi nancial information to help keep citizens safe and off of the 

streets . 

Firstlink 2- 1 -1 made over 1 8,700 referra ls .  

Firstlink 2-1 -1 gave hope to 39,623 cal lers who needed assistance. 

Firstlink 2-1 -1 answered calls from 51 counties in North Dakota. 

An African proverb tells us, " I f  you want to go fast, go alone. If you want to go far, go together. "  

Together we can go far . . .  because HOPE DOES BEGIN HERE with Firstlink 2-1 -1 helpl ine. I t  

doesn't matter who you are or where you l ive, with the state support of SB 2205, al l North 

Dakota residents can get help and hope. Large cities , rural areas, we are there for everyone, 

n ig ht and day. There are letters of support in your packets, and brochures with more detai ls 

about Firstlink 2-1 -1 . Chairman Lee, thank you for the opportunity to appear before your 

committee today. If you have any questions I wi l l  be happy to respond. 

Cindy Mil ler 

Firstlink Executive Director 

(70 1  )-293-6462 

cindym@myfirstlink.org 

#- !  
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2·1�1 
Get Connected. Get Answers. 

2-1 -1 H e l p l i n e  
Firstlin k  strives to be the fi rst point of contact 

for information and referra l ,  listening and support, 

and mil itary/veteran support .  

Firstlink's 2-1 - 1  Helpl ine is a free service 

avai lable 24/7 to the publ ic.  Call  Special ists offer 

supportive, non-judgmental listening ears and 

provide information about your community 

resources. To reach the helpl ine, dial 2-1 -1  or 

701 -235-7335 (SEEK).  The resources can also 

be accessed online at www . mvfirstl ink.org. 

Firstlink a lso provides unique suicide services, 

including Suicide Survivors' Support Group,  

Su icide Education Outreach , Applied Su icide 

I ntervention Ski l ls Training (ASIST),  and 

answers calls on the National Suicide Prevention 

Lifel ine (NSPL).  

If you or someone you know are having thoughts 

of suicide dial  1 -800-273-8255 (TALK) to reach 

the National S uicide Prevention Lifel ine 24 hours 

a day. Firstlink is the only NSPL call center in 

North Dakota. 

Volu nteer Opportu nities 

Beh ind the ideas and efforts of bui ld ing a better 

world, volunteers fuel a movement of 

compassion and connection .  Firstlink acts as 

the vital l i n k  between volunteers and 

organ izations need ing volunteers. The 

Volu nteer Center provides easy access to a 

wide range of volunteer opportun ities at 

nonprofit organizations and local government 

agencies. Fi rstlink also provides tra in ing,  

resources, and assistance to agencies, 

businesses, schools, and others who work with 

volunteers. To volunteer go to 

www.myfirst l ink.org or call 2-1 - 1 . 
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Get Connected. Get Answers. 

A free he l p l i ne a nswered 
24 h o u rs a day. 

Listen i ng & S upport 

2- 1 - 1 provides a supportive, 
non-judgmental listening ear. 

I nformation & Referral 

Fi rstlink's database conta ins 
pr imari ly nonprofit human 
service resources in  North Dakota 
and Clay County, Minnesota . 

I n d ividuals a re welcome to cal l  
about a variety of needs i n cl u d i n g ,  
but not l i m ited to:  

• Addictions 

• Disasters 

• Emergency Shelters 

Financial Assistance 

• Food Assistance 

• Mil itary S upport 

• Support Groups 

• Volunteer Opportun ities 

'""""'t -(Hope Beg ins Here 
PEOPLE o RESOURCES 

www . myfi rst l i  n k. o rg 
PO Box 447 

Fargo,  NO 581 07-0447 
Helpl ine: d ia l 2- 1 - 1 

or 70 1 -235-7335 (SEEK) 
Su icide Life l ine: 1 -800-273-8255 (TALK) 

Fax: 701 -235-24 76 

Funded in part by: 
* �-f�l ZIWJWIP 'G 

Ge£ Conneaed. Get Answers. 

P E O P LE • RESOUR CES 



20 1 3 - 0 1 - 25 1 3 : 33 Stark DES 

TO: Cindy Miller 
From: North Dakota 911 Association 

Subject: SB22SO Support 

Date: January 251 2013 

Ms. Miller, 

4567602 » 701 2352476 p 2/2 

I am writing in support of 582205 on behalf of the North Dakota 911 Association. Th is funding will 
provide FirstLink the resources to operate 2vl-l services in the state of North Dakota.  Our state has 

benefited greatly from this essentia l service. Through this program, those in need a re rapidly 
connected with appropriate serviees. It is my belief that the partnership between FirstLink and the 

North Dakota 911 Association can reduce calls into a 911 public safety answering point. FlrstLink may 

refer to our 911 centers as needed� and help deesca late many callers so 911 services are not needed . 

In addition to referral and information, 2-1-1 also helps those who need l isten ing and support� 

especially during a disaster. 
This letter of support is being sent in hopes that it will ensure First Link  can continue to provide these 

m uch needed and necessary services. 

Please grant a "do pass11 to 582205� 

Since rely1 
. 7 

"'"' J. '// ,/ · t �, lf  ;(teAt :,. / /''/?' 7 
I ·' � 

Bill Fah lsing 

President 
N D911 Association 

2013 ND 911 Association Bo�rd1 9Jl l  fijhl�lng, President; Liz Beck, VleHrosld�nt; Karla Germann, Soermrv/Tr�asurer; Becky Ault, P�st PrC$ldcnt; Janelle 
P�pplc, Membet·M·L�rao 



0 1 / 2 5 / 2 0 1 3 FRI 1 2 : 2 3  FAX 7 0 1  3 2 8  9 6 1 0  ND I ns urance Dept �0 0 2 / 0 0 2  

January 25, 201 3 

Sen. Judy Lee, Chairman 
1-1 unum Services Comm ittee 
North Dakota State Capital 
600 E. Boulevard Ave. 
B ismarck, NO 58505 

Deur Senator Lee: 

North Dakota 
Insurance Depari1nent 

Adam W. Hamm, Commissioner 

S ince March 20 I 0, 11 group of state agencies and nonproi1ts have worked together to keep 2 1  I going 
statewide after an announcement that its funding would not last. Now the legislature has the opportunity 
to J'evive this vital service long-term. 

2 1  I is an important statewide resource. It provided essential services to North Dakotans on behalf of the 
Insurance Department during the last four Medicare Part D annual �nrolhi1ent periods. Over 3,500 
beneficiaries called 2 I 1 in  between 2009 and 20 1 2  to take advantage of t11e convenient service. By 
handl ing those calls, 2 1 1  enabled our Department to help even more North Dakotans during one of our 
busiest times of the year. 

2 1  I is an important po1tal into many government services, and it deserves support f1'om our legislature. I 
encourage you to pass SB2205 fOI' the citizens ofNOJth Dakota. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

600 li. Boulevard Ave., Bismnrcl<, ND 58505 • (70 1 )  328-2440 • Fax (701) 328-4880 • in�unmcc({ynd.gov 
Consum�r IH>IIine: 1 -800-247-0560 • Relay ND TTY 1 -800-366-6888 • www.nd.!tov/ndins 

. .. .. . .  ··· . . : 



NO Volunteers Organizations 

Active in Disaster Members: 

Adventist Community Services 

American Red Cross 

Catholic Charities NO 

Christian Reformed World Relief 

Church World Service 

Church of Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints 

Civil Air Patrol 

Firstlink/2-1-1 

Headwaters/Maridian Services 

Legal Servcies of NO 

Lutheran Disaster Response 

Mental Health America NO 

NECHAMA Jewish Response to Disaster 

NO Community Action Partnership 

NO Emergency Management Association 

NO League of Cities 

NO Psychological Association 

Presbyterian Church USA 

RSVP+ of ND 

Red River Radio Amateurs 

Souris Valley United Way 

The Salvation Army 

TouchGiobal Evangelical Free Church of Ameri

ca 

United Church of Christ 

United Methodist Disaster Response 

Associate Members: 

FEMA Region VIII 

ND Dept. of Emergency Services 

NO Dept. of Health 

ND Dept. of Human Services 

NDSU Dept. of Emergency Management 

NDSU Extension Service 

The N D  Volunteer Organizations Active in Disaster (NDVOAD) 

writes in support of SB#2205. This fun ding will provide Firstlink  the re

sources to operate 2-1-1 services in the state of North Dakota. Our state 

has benefited greatly from this essential service. Through this program, 

those in need are rapidly connected with appropriate services. In  addi

tion to referral and i nformation statewide, 2-1-1 a lso help's those who 

need listening and support. 

During times of disaster 2-1-1 is a vital l ink to provide comfort 

and support to those affected by disaster and to assist with the dissemi

nation of information during the disaster response and recovery phases. 

The continuation of 2-1-1 services in our state is essential to 

h elp provide support and resources to those in need. 

Please grant a "d o pass" to SB#2205 

On behalf of the ND VOAD Membership 

Beth Dewald 

Chair NDVOAD 



.. �Y Miller 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
S u bject: 

Cindy M i l ler 
Executive D irector 
First L ink 

Mathern, Tim <tmathern@nd .gov> 
Monday, January 2 1 ,  201 3 1 0:43 AM 
Cindy Miller 
LaFrancois, Greg; Lee, Judy E . ;  Hoffner, Dawn ; Axness, Tyler 
882205 

I write i n  support of SB2205 directing an appropriation of $3 25 ,000 to the 
off i ce of management and budget for the purpose of provid ing a grant for . 
adm i n istering statewide 2-1-1 services. 

Our goal as a leg is lature to support 2 1 1  when we first got i nvolved was to ass ist 
our c it izens and organizat ions to eff ic iently connect services and people.  Thank 
·ou for continu ing this service when Mental Health America was no longer able to 

sustain it .  

#=; 

Whi le  some of the support has been private donations there is a great pub l ic need 
that th is service meets. Additional publ ic  i nvestment is appropriate. The amount i n  
th is  b i l l  i s  modest and wel l  with in  the means of the resources avai lable t o  the 
leg is lature th is b iennium. 

F irst L ink is a critical service for c it izens across the state. Many social  service 
agencies have l imited resources to market their services. A properly funded 2 1 1  
service i s  important t o  bridge this gap. 

Be assured of my support for SB2205 and please look to me for help in committee 
del iberations. 

Senator Tim Mathern 
5 10 4th St S 
Fargo ND 58103 
t mathern@ nd.gov 

1 



Susan Rae 1-iel · eland . .  , .  . .... ' '  . . . _., _!;! . . . .  
Executive Director 

January 2 1 , 201 3.  

M l- � 

Menta l H . . .  America 
of North oakota 

MHAND i> a privbte, �o�'prcijii SiJ1(cj(3/�9�vcy · 
. 

. .Oindy Mil l�r, Ex�cutive Director 
Firstlink I nc; . 
4_357 · 1s1h Avy §, . . tf1 Q7 
Fargo, ND 58103 

D$ar Cindy, 
Mental Health Am$riqt:J of N9rth Dakqta (MHANP) strongly sl)pports SB # 2205, to 
fund the ND 2-1-1 program through Firstlirik, hie. 

· 

MHAND nas been ah �ctlve. 501 (c)3 for over 60 years. MHAND's mission is 
to prpmqte me(7fa_f hfl,?.lth through education advocqcy, vndf!?rsf9nding and access to 
quafitycare fbt all indiViduals. · 

The 2-1 -1 program is a sighificalit help to MHAND in the implementation of ow mission. 
A 24/7 refe.rral ,  crisis ?rid s�pport1ve listenfng helpline program for people whh 
behavipral hec:ilth (nwntql i i i  ness and. substance use) issues, and their  ·family members ,  
is  vita·l to  connett individuals with the services they need . 

Sincerely, 

"'J2 t  . · . . . · · · . �f.�ae H�lgel� 
Executive bire¢tor 

www. mhand�org 
Bismarc� "'" 523 North 4ih str¢d � P,o i:lq�-4�()6 - Bi�marck, Nb ssS.oi--4106 , Phgne {701) 2SS·36�2 , Fa'!: (\Ql) j5.5,i4,il- - - - - - - ·  . . Farg� ._,: 112 North Univefsity, Suite 316 · Fargo, ND SSi02 • Phone {70i) 237-5871 • Fai<(701) 237cOS62 



�· · m Benefit Specialists 

To whom it may CdriCerh, 

P. 0. 80� 10006 
Fargq ND 581 06 
.Phone; 701 .492.7372 
Fax: 208.445.2288 
Emall: rlck@benefltspedall$ls,blz 

I wou·ld u rge a l l  members of the N O  State L�gis latUrE: to vote yes on 
SB#220$ . fhis .mpney i$  ne.ed.ed to help fund the First Unk 2-1-1 
statewide n�twork. They do very impor�ant work in the a rea o:f su idde 

prevention. Again i wo!.ild u rg$ you to consider th is bi l l  with a high . 

priority. 



JAN - 2 1 - 2 0 1 3  MON 0 5 : 36 PM 

January 21, 2013 

Dear Legislator: 

I am writing this letter in support of SB #2205 and 2-1-1. 

I first learned about 2-1-1 when I was executive director of M issouri Slope Areawide (Bismarck
Mandan) United Way (MSAUW)-in fact at the time 2-1-1 was endorsed by United Way of 

America. During my tenure, MSAUW provided funds to operate 2-1-l in North Dakota, but not 

enough to fully support it. 

I feel that 2-1-1 is a convenient and vital service for the citizens of North Dakota. By dialing just 

three easy-to-remember numbers, one can tap into a wealth of information about human 

services: health care1 housing, transportation, senior services, addiction services, and more. My 

wife and I have used 2�1-1 o n  several occasions. 

I a lso know that 2-1�1 is a valuable resource in suicide prevention in  the state. 2-1-1 operators 

are specially trained to take calls from people who are at risk. Sometimes people who a re lonely 

and d epressed just need someone to tal k  to. 

The 2-1-1 service in North Dakota needs tci grow and it should be promoted so that more 

people learn about it. I totally support 2-1�1 and I urge you to pass SB #2205. 

� 
Tom Regan 

813 Bryan Tra I 

Mandan, NO 58 54 

701-400-8844 

p,  UU I 



_ Jy Miller 

From: 
Sent: 

LaFrancois, Greg <Greg. LaFrancois@uhsinc.com> 
Monday, January 2 1 , 20 1 3  4:46 PM 

To: 
Subject: 

Cindy Mi l ler 
Executive Director 
F i rst Link 

Cindy M iller 
Letter of Support 

I write in support of SB22o5:'which wil l  provide Ffrstlink the resources to operate 2-1 -1 services in the 
state of North Dakota. Our state has benefited greatly from this essential service. Through this 
program, those in need are rapidly connected with appropriate services. In addition to referral and 
information, 2-1-1 also helps those who need l istening and support. They refer to our establishment, 
and help many find appropriate services. By way of example, last year they answered 1 ,41 6 calls 
that were suicide related and 39,623 calls on all phone l ines. 

The continuation of 2-1-1 services in our state is essential to help provide support and resources to 
those in need. 

0lease grant a "do pass" to SB#2205. 

Greg LaFrancois 
Chief Executive Officer 
Prairie St. John's Hospital 

1 
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January 21, 2013 

To Whom It May Concern: 

I am writing on behalf of biii SB#2205 to help fund Firstlink's 2-1-1 statewide service. As a grief 

counselor who serves a var.iety of people in both rural and urban areas of North· Dakota, I have found 

this service to be instrumental in serving the people of North Dakota by providing access to health and 

· human service information that one may not otherwise be able to find. 

I have used it as important referral resource for my clients in need of both basic needs and social 

support: The 2-i-1 program is important in making people self sufficient and helping them to build both 

the confidence a nd skills to overcome life's difficulties. 

I call on Firstlink often to aid in finding resources for my clients and have their staff speak to a group of 

my clients to go over some of the benefits that the Firstlink 2-1-1 service provides. Often times, clients 

comment that it is a wonderful and necessary service and they wish they had known sooner a bout this 

centralized resource. 

I also have been a call specialist in the past for Firstlink. I can tell you this service can mean the 

d ifference between prevention and escalation of social problems. The call specialists are trained in a 

way to listen, provide support and referral - this in turn gives people both a d irection and hope. 

This is one resource of the state that can affect everyone, and in my opinion, an investment in the 

people of the great state of North Dakota. ple.ase help fund it through �he SB #2205 bill. 

Sincerely,· 

��,.ns/Wt.,tr 
Carrie Stenseth, MS, LPc; CT 

I 



SB 2205 

SENATE HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 

S ENATOR JUDY LEE, CHAIR 

Chairwoman Lee and members of the Senate H u man Services Committee, for the record my 

name is Kris Storbeck. I am the Substance Abuse Treatment Administrator for the North Dakota 

Department of H u man Services. I am here to provide you with information on how the Department has 

used 2-1 -1 services. 

There are three areas that the Department of H u man Services uses the services of 2-1 -1 . The 

first is to provide information and referral for the Compulsive Gambling Program. S econdly, 2-1 -1 was 

uti l ized for information and referral during the Immediate Services Phase of the C risis Cou nseling 

Program for the recent Presidential-declared flood d isaster. � 2-1-1  handles general mental h ealth 

and substance abuse information and referral calls. 

Thank you and I would be happy to answer any questions. 

* 2- 1- 1 was used for the Immediate Services portion of the Crisis Counseling Program (the first 60 days). 

After that, during the Regular Services portion of the program, -�utheran Disaster Response, the 

contracted provider of crisis counseling services, handled calfs direc(ly. 



Testimony 
Senate Bill 2205 

Senate H u man Services Committee 
Tuesday, Jan uary 29, 2013: 10:30 a.m. 

North Dakota Department of Health 

Good morning, Madam Chair and members of the Senate Human Services 
Committee. My name is Micki Savelkoul and I am the Suicide Prevention 
Program director for the North Dakota Department of Health. I am here today 
to provide information about services 2-1-1 provides for the Department of 

Health in relation to Senate B ill 2205 . 

In the 2011-2013 biennium, the Department of Health and FirstLink have 
worked on several projects together. In addition to operating 2-1-1, FirstLink is 
the organization that operates the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline (NSPL). 

The Department of Health provides funding to First L ink for two additional 
projects: Applied Suicide Intervention Skills Training (ASIST) and the NSPL 

call back program. 

FirstLink has two incoming phone lines designated specifically for the NSPL. 
Calls to these lines take priority over calls to 2-1-1. Calls to 2-1-1 are answered 
in the order that they come in or in a phone "queue," which may result in a long 
wait time or an abandoned call. Because suicidal callers are potentially being 

placed in a queue or waiting on hold when calling 2-1-1, the Department of 
Health promotes the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline as a resource for 
suicidal callers rather than 2-1-1. 

ASIST is an educational program designed to teach people about recognizing 
the warning signs of suicide, how to talk to someone about suicide and how to 
refer them for help. FirstLink has conducted ASIST in two locations in North 
Dakota. FirstLink has also worked with two of our new ASIST trainers who are 
American Indian, and offered ASIST on the tribal college campuses within 

North Dakota. Firstlink mentored the new trainers and provided guidance in 

conducting the ASIST classes. FirstLink also coordinated bringing the ASI ST 
train-the-trainer model to North Dakota where 24 new ASIST trainers in North 
Dakota were trained on the model. FirstLink again mentored the new trainers 

and assisted in  setting up trainings needed for them to become fully 
credentialed. 



In 2012 FirstLink began offering a call back program. Through that program, 
people who called the NSPL were asked if they would like additional support 
over the next 6 to 8 weeks by receiving calls from a staff member at FirstLink. 
These calls provide listening and support, assistance with or referral to 
community resources, developing healthy coping skills and a healthy support 
system. The call back program has also been offered to a few hospitals and 
clinics within the state as a resource for patients who may be admitted with 
suicidal ideation, but not in imminent risk, that are agreeable to additional 
support once discharged from the hospital. 

The 2-1-1 hotline may provide services to the Department of Health's Suicide 
Prevention Program by providing referrals to community agencies . They may 
also provide suicide intervention when a suicidal caller calls 2-1-1 instead of 
the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline. 

This completes my testimony. I would be happy to answer any questions you 
may have. 



COMMISSIONERS 

Brian P. Kalk 
Randy Christmann 
Julie Fedorchak 

Executive Secretary 
Darrell Nitschke 

Public Service Commission 
State of North Dakota 

Honorable Judy Lee, Chairman 
Human Services Committee 
North Dakota Senate 
600 East Boulevard A venue 
Bismarck, ND 58505 

Re: Senate Bill 2205 

Dear Chairman Lee: 

January 29, 20 1 3  

600 East Boulevard, Dept. 408 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0480 

Web: www.psc.nd.gov 
E-mail: ndpsc@nd.gov 

Phone: 701-328-2400 
ND Toll Free: 1-877-245-6685 

Fax: 701-328-24 10 
TDD: 800-366-6888 or 7 1 1  

I am writing to strongly support funding for statewide 2-1 - 1  service. I n  my years 
with the Public Service Commission, the importance of statewide 2-1 - 1  service is clear. 

The Public Service Commission designated FirstLink as North Dakota's 2- 1 - 1  
provider i n  March 20 1 0  (a copy of the Commission's order i s  attached). A s  you can see 
from the history summarized in the Order, sufficient funding is crucial to any effort to 
provide 2- 1 - 1 service to North Dakota residents. 

Thank you for your consideration of the proposal to fund a statewide 2- 1 - 1  
program. I ask for your favorable action on S B  2205. If you have any questions, please 
do not hesitate to call or e-mail. 

c:w/encl 
Senator Oley Larsen, Vice Chairman 
Senator Tyler Axness 
Senator Dick Dever 
Senator Howard C. Anderson, Jr. 

Best regards, 

-&t.K7� 
Chairman 



FirstLin k  
2 1 1 Designation 
Application 

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

Case No. PU-09-71 3 

ORDER DESIGNATIN G  S TATEWIDE 21 1 DIALIN G  CODE USER 

M arch 1 8, 201 0  

The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) has designated the 21 1 dialing 
code to provide direct access to organizations providing community infonnation and 
referral services that are currently not available through the 91 1 emergency code or the 
3 1 1 police non-emergency code. 

On September 24, 2003, the Commission designated the Mental Health 
Association in North Dakota (MHAND), as the user of the 21 1 dialing code statewide in 
North Dakota. 

On March 7, 2007, the Commission authorized MHAND to subcontract 21 1 
operations in North Dakota. MHAND subcontracted with Firstlink for the provision of 
21 1 in Cass County. 

In  its October 30, 2009 letter, MHAND notified the Commission that, due to lack 
of economic support, it must relinquish its designation as the 21 1 d ialing code user. 

On November 2, 2009, the Commission received a letter stating that effective 
October 30, 2009, Firstlink will temporarily provide statewide 21 1 operations for North 
Dakota until a decision is made about 21 1 's future. Firstlink subsequently indicated it 
would provide statewide 21 1 operations until March 1 5, 201 0. 

On November 23, 2009 , Firstlink filed a letter requesting designation as the 21 1 
d ialing code user for North Dakota. 

- - -- ····-····· . . ..  . . . ... 

On November 25, 2009, the Commission issued a Notice of Opportunity for 
Hearing providing until January 8, 201 0  for comments and requests for hearing. No 
comments or requests for hearing were received . 

On January 1 4  and January 25, 201 0, Firstlink filed affidavits of Cindy Miller, 
Executive Director of Firstlink, in support of the application. The January 25 affidavit 
stated that Firstlink is no longer interested in a statewide 21 1 designation due to a lack 
of stable long-term funding for the entire state. However, Firstlink would like to be the 
designated user of the 21 1 d ialing code in Cass County. 

On February 1 0, 201 0, the Commission authorized Firstlink to use the 21 1 
d ialing code in Cass County. 

On February 1 9 ,  201 0, a meeting of stakeholders was held to assess support for 
statewide 21 1 services going forward. 

29 · PU-09-71 3 Filed: 3/1 8/20 1 0  Pages: 2 
Order Designating Statewide 211 Dialing Code User 

Public Se!'.lice Commission 



On February 1 9, 201 0, the Commission issued a Notice of Intent to Reopen 
Proceeding because it had reason to believe that conditions of fact had changed and 
public interest required the reopening of the proceeding. The Notice listed the following 
issues: 

1 .  Is any other entity interested in designation as the user of 
the 21 1 dial code in North Dakota? 

2 .  Is Firstlink's intended use of the 21 1 dial code in  North 
Dakota consistent with the FCC intended use of that code? 

3. Is i t  in the public interest for the Commission to authorize 
Firstlink statewide use of the 2 1 1 d ialing code, effective 
when Firstlink's 21 1 services are sufficiently funded? 

On March 4, 201 0, another meeting of stakeholders was held to assess support 
for statewide 21 1 services. 

On March 1 1 ,  201 0, Firstlink filed an affidavit of Cindy M iller supporting the 
application and requesting that the Commission authorize Firstlink as the statewid e  
user of the 21 1 d ialing code. 

Firstlink's intended use of the 21 1 dialing code is to create and maintain a 
database of programs and services, and then to disseminate this information to 
ind ividuals that dial the 21 1 code. Firstlink employs trained call s pecialists to answer 
information ,  referral,  crisis, listening and support calls. Firstlink is certified in Alliance of 
Information and Referral Systems and has been a call center for many years. 

Firstlink's intended use of the 21 1 dial code in Cass County is consistent with 
the FCC intended use of that code and should be designated for s uch use. It is in the 
public interest for the Commission to authorize Firstlink statewide u se of the 21 1 dialing 
code.  

Order 

Firstlink is authorized to use the 21 1 dialing code in North Dakota for access to 
communitY inforrriatkin and referraf seiVfces� . 

- · ·  ........ . · - · ·- ·· ····· · . 

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

Case No. PU-09-71 3  
Order Designating 2 1 1  Dialing Code User 
Page 2 

Kevin Cramer 
Chairman 

B rian P.  Kalk 
Commissioner 



RNa Emergency 
Management 
Association 

NORTH DAKOTA 
EMERGE.NCY MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

Mary Senger 
President. 
Burleigh County Emergency Management 
22 1 N 5'" Street 
Bismorck, ND 58501 
701 -222-6727 
!111'.«-nSQ!@!!Q.Jl.QY 
Brett Lambrecht  
1 "  Vice Pres.idcnt 
Richland County Emergency Management 
4 1 8 2nd Ave N 
Wahpeton, ND 58075 
701 -642-7788 
blambrech!@CO.richland.nd. u� 

Karen Kempcrt 
2" Vice President 
Cavalier County Emt:rgency Management 
90 I 3'd Street, Suite 6 
Langdon, ND 58249 
701 -256-391 l 
k\\.llmP..t.lrt@ll�Lggy 
Bill Fahlsing 
Secretary-Treasurer 

·rk County Emergency Management 
J!useum Drive West 

Adnson, ND 58601 
'701 -456-7605 
hfl!blsingiWJl\!Ik.gw.nt.x.o!!,gQY. 

Michele Marthaller 
Member at Large 
Adams County Emergency Management 
PO Box 589 
f lcttinger, ND 58639 
701 -567-4598 
!Wams-cn:u!ilnd,guy 

Jerry Ucrgquist 
Member at Large 
Stutsman Cotmty Emergency Management 
105 6'h St SE 
Jamestown, ND 5840 I 
701-252-9093 
Jk�r.&.Q\li@n.g.ggy 
,Jill Pedersen 
Past President 
Pemliina County Emergency Management 
301 Dakota St. 
Cavalier, ND 58220 
70 l -265-4849 
Jrrm���m.r�@og,ggv. 
Rick Robinson 
State Representative 
ND DES 
PO Box 55 1 1  
Rismarck, ND 58502-55 1 I 

-328-8 106 
JiD.�QJ!@IJilJ�,QX 

Website: http://www.ndema.org 
Faccbook: NDEMAssoc 
Twitter: N DEMAssoc 

January 28, 20 1 3  

RE: SUPPORT SB2205 

The North Dakota Emergency Management Association supports the 
amendment to SB 2205 to fund First Link 2- 1 -L 

Our membership' s  daily job is planning and responding to emergency situations. 
First Link is an asset to many of our communities during times of emergency as 
well as day-to-day situations. 

First Link is an asset to the State of North Dakota and our North Dakota 
Emergency Management Association membership. 

The Board of Directors encourages you to supp01t the amendment to SB 2205 to . 
maintain funding for this organization. 

6.�� 
President 



Lutheran 
Social Services 
of North Dakota 

J a n uary 29, 2013 

Cindy Mi l ler  

Executive Director 

First Link 

4357 13 Ave S 

Fargo, NO 58103 

Re: 582205 

Dear Ci ndy 

I t  is  my pleasure to write a letter o f  su pport for the services of 2-1-1. As the Progra m Director of 

Lutheran Socia l  Services G a m blers Choice, we greatly appreciate the se rvice of 2-1 -1  across the state . 

Co m p ulsive ga mblers who a re fee l i ng desperate, a lone a n d  potentia l ly  s u ic idal  have a safe and 

s u p po rtive place to ca l l  for information o r  j ust a l i stening e a r. 

We a re gratefu l that a ca l ler  from a nywhere i n  the state ca n be refe rred, t h ro ugh yo u r  extensive data 

base, for a ssista n ce which may include sup port grou ps, profess iona l  m ental  healt h  counselors, f inancial  

advisors or  treatment p rogra ms. In som e  cases, it  has been wonderful to know a cal ler has  con nected 

p e rsona l ly with an i n d iv idua l  who has experie nced the same d ifficu lties, but has now fo u n d  recovery. 

P lease support fu n d i ng for 2-1-1 on a statewide basis so that a l l  who a re struggl ing, for wh atever reason, 

may fi n d  a q u a l ified l iste ner  who ca n d i rect them i n  their search for h e a l i ng. 

1 
S i n ce re ly, _ , _), 

/�---�· ,' 4_: �?'"/)_ l!t:./ {_� (J(I__. 
' ,/ L/'  /.' / ' 
'
· --

_./
Lisa Vig, L c, N(G 
Program Directof 

Luthe ra n Socia l Services G a m blers Choice 

Guided by God's love f!fl(/ grace, 
Lutf10ran Social Setvices of North Dai<ota brings healing, help ami hope. 

www.lss nd. org 



Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee. I am Cindy 

Miller, Executive Director of FirstLink. I am here today to ask you to support SB #2205 

requesting $325,000 in funding for the upcoming biennium for the purpose of supporting 

and maintaining 2- 1 - 1  service statewide. 

FirstLink' s Helpline was incorporated in 1 97 1  and continues to ensure people have 

access to 24 hour information and referral about nonprofit human service and emergency 

resources as well  as l istening and support. Previously, FirstLink subcontracted with 

MHAND to take 2- 1 - 1  calls for Cass County. But the end of October 2009 we received a 

call stating MHAND was closing their doors October 3 1 ,  2009. They wanted to know if 

we could continue the 2- 1 - 1  statewide service. Our board believed in the importance of 

2- 1 - 1  and knew that to restart a program would be extremely chal lenging and detrimental 

to people in North Dakota who rely on the service. So we decided to do whatever it took 

to continue 2- 1 - 1  service statewide . . .  at least temporarily. We realized that this would 

mean more calls, and more updating of our database would be needed. We are only as 

good as the information we give callers. 

Then the Public Service Commissioners with concerned groups gathered, the stories we 

heard about the importance of continuing 2- 1 - 1  was amazing. They stepped up and told 

us over and over again how essential 2- 1 - 1  service is to the citizens ofNorth Dakota. 

This is why I am here today ! This service is our mission and passion and has been for 

over 40 years. FirstLink is a highly qualified 2- 1 - 1  call center. With certifications in 

American Association of Suicidology (AAS), Alliance of Information and Referral 

Systems (AIRS), and all staff are trained in Applied Suicide Intervention Skills Training 

(ASIST). 

I 



It seems everyone is concerned and worried about something these days. We are fil led 

with fears - about losing our homes, jobs, retirement packages, freedom, and natural 

disasters. However, since FirstLink 2- 1 - 1  is here 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days 

a year to provide resources and referrals to callers, we have the ability to make getting 

help much easier. 

Did you know that on the back of the lottery tickets it says, "If gambling is no longer fun, 

dial 2- 1 - 1  "? 

Did you know the military encourages military personnel and their families to call? 

FirstLink 2- 1 - 1 ?  

Did you know that the North Dakota Insurance Department uses FirstLink 2- 1 - 1  to help 

them with their annual drug prescription registration process? 

Did you know that the ND SAVIN program uses FirstLink 2- 1 - 1  for 24 hour information 

about victim services? 

Did you know that the North Dakota Department of Health is utilizing FirstLink 2- 1 - 1  to 

assist with the suicide support follow up program across the state? 

Did you know that FEMA and the Adjutant General ' s  Office both refer people during 

disasters to call FirstLink 2- 1 - 1 ?  

These are just a few of the many ways the state util izes FirstLink to accomplish their 

programs. We are there 24 hours a day to do the work for so many. 

When it comes to disaster services, FirstLink has contracts with several local counties 

and cities to assist them during disasters. In 2009 they coordinated over 1 00,000 

volunteers and answered over 50,000 calls on a volunteer flood hotline related to disaster 

preparation and clean-up. FirstLink has the ability to assist as needed in disasters through 

contracts and through 2- 1 - 1 .  FirstLink 2- 1 - 1  can assist callers who have experienced a 

disaster and are in need of resources and referrals to help them get through such difficult 

times. Year round, FirstLink understands that when basic needs are met, people are better 

able to cope with disaster. Therefore, by providing referrals for basic needs and by 

empowering callers, FirstLink 2- 1 - 1  helps strengthen the resilience of our community. 



To be more specific about our services, FirstLink 2- 1 - 1  is a free helpline answered 24 

hours a day providing: 

Listening, support, information and referral about human service resources. 

Common 2- 1 - 1  referrals include, but are not limited to: 

Disasters 

Emergency Shelters 

Financial Assistance 

MilitaryN eteran Support 

Support Groups 

Addictions 

Disability Support 

Volunteer Opportunities 

Who needs FirstLink? 

All people . . .  anywhere in North Dakota anytime ! 

People who need resources and referrals 

People who need help during times of crisis 

People who are negatively impacted by the economy 

People with mental health issues 

People from rural communities where fewer resources may be available 

People from large communities where many resources are available 

Where does FirstLink 2- 1 - 1  currently receive most of its funding? 

FirstLink' s  main funding source has been through the United Way of Cass-Clay. They 

have and will continue to support FirstLink's 2- 1 - 1  Helpline, Suicide Lifeline, and 

suicide support services. FirstLink has contracts with Cass County, Clay County, and the 

Cities of Fargo, Moorhead and West Fargo to provide disaster services. FirstLink also has 

contracts with various human service agencies to provide crisis support after hours. 

Currently 2- 1 - 1  statewide funding has been received from the North Dakota Department 

of Health, North Dakota Department of Human Services, the Adjutants General ' s  office, 

and other United Ways from across the state. The current state support is done June 30, 

20 1 3 .  The demand for services provided by FirstLink to North Dakota residents 

continues to increase, while funding is pending. 



Why should the state invest in FirstLink 2- 1 - 1 ?  

North Dakota' s  2- 1 - 1  statewide service is in jeopardy without state funding. 

2- 1 - 1  is a free, easy to remember three digit number that is available 24/7 to the ENTIRE 

state ofNorth Dakota. Now is the time to invest in FirstLink 2- 1 - 1 .  This will assure that 

all citizens have information about services available to them, including disaster 

preparation and relief services. 

At the moment North Dakota' s 2- 1 - 1  service also benefits from FirstLink' s  partnership 

with the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline 1 -800-273-8255 (TALK). At FirstLink all 

call specialists that answer 2- 1 - 1  also answer the suicide lifeline. Therefore, FirstLink 

2- 1 - 1 call specialists are not only trained in information and referral, but also in crisis and 

suicide prevention. FirstLink has found this training to be significantly -beneficial since 

2- 1 - 1  callers can very easily turning to suicidal callers. FirstLink is the only call center in 

the state of North Dakota that takes cal ls on this designated national suicide lifeline. The 

national network assures that no call for help goes unanswered. 

In 20 1 2 :  

FirstLink deescalated hundred' s  of callers who were suicidal and needed a safe place to 

call to collaborate on a safety plan.  These calls saved North Dakota law enforcement, fire 

departments, dispatch centers, and EMT's hundred's of hours of time. By calling 

FirstLink these departments did not need to dispatch help for welfare checks, or spend 

time deescalating citizens. 

FirstLink contracted to provide significant flood relief services. 

FirstLink 2- 1 - 1  gives social service agencies a place for their clients to call for crisis 

support on evenings and weekends. 

FirstLink 2- 1 - 1  gave shelter and financial information to help keep citizens safe and off 

of the streets. 

FirstLink 2- 1 - 1  gave hope to 39,623 callers who needed assistance. 

FirstLink answered 1 ,4 1 6  calls related to suicide on all phone lines. 

FirstLink 2- 1 - 1  answered calls  from 5 1  counties in North Dakota. 



It doesn't matter who you are or where you live with financial assistance by the state, all 

North Dakota residents wil l  be able to get help and support. Large cities, rural areas, we 

are there for everyone, night and day. 

There are letters of support that Senator Lee has received. 

Chairman Holmberg, thank you for the opportunity to appear before your committee 

today. If any of you have any questions I will be happy to respond. 

Cindy Mil ler 

First Link Executive Director 

(70 1 )-293-6462 

cindym@myfirstlink.org 
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Public Service Commission 
State ofNorth Dakota 

Honorable Judy Lee, Chairman 
Hwnan Services Committee 
North Dakota Senate 
600 East Boulevard A venue 
Bismarck, ND 58505 

Re: Senate Bill 2205 

Dear Chairman Lee: 

January 29, 201 3  

600 East Boulevard, Dept 408 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0480 

Web: www.psc.nd.gov 
E-mail: ndpsc@nd.gov 

Phone: 70 1 -328-2400 
NO Toll Free: 1-877-245-6685 

Fax: 70 1-328-2410 
TDD: 800-366-6888 or 71 1 

I am writing to strongly support funding for statewide 2-1 - 1  service. In my years 
with the Public Service Commission, the importance of statewide 2-1 - 1  service is clear. 

The Public Service Commission designated FirstLink as North Dakota's 2-1 - 1  
provider in March 201 0  (a copy of the Commission's order i s  attached). As you can see 
from the history summarized in the Order, sufficient funding is crucial to any effort to 
provide 2-1- 1  service to North Dakota residents. 

Thank you for your consideration of the proposal to fund a statewide 2- 1-1  
program. I ask for your favorable action on SB 2205. If  you have any questions, please 
do not hesitate to call or e-mail. 

c:w/encl 
Senator Oley Larsen, Vice Chairman 
Senator Tyler Axness 
Senator Dick Dever 
Senator Howard C. Anderson, Jr. 

Best regards, 

Chairman 

3 LA-63-2205 Filed: 1 /29/201 3  Pages: 3 
Letter to Committee Chair regarding support of 
SB-2205 

Public Service Commission 
Commissioner Brian Kalk 
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FirstLink 
211 Designation 
Application 

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

Case No. PUM09M713 

ORDER DESIGNATING STATEWIDE 211 DIALING CODE USER 

March 1 8, 2010 

The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) has designated the 21 1 dialing 
code to provide direct access to organizations providing community infonnatlon and 
referral services that are currently not available through the 9 1 1 emergency code or the 
3 1 1  police non-emergency code. 

On September 24, 2003, the Commission designated the Mental Health 
Association in North Dakota (MHAND), as the user of the 21 1 dialing code statewide in 
North Dakota. 

On March 7, 2007, the Commission authorized MHAND to subcontract 21 1 

operations in North Dakota. MHAND subcontracted with Firstlink for the provision of 
21 1 in Cass County. 

In its October 30, 2009 letter, MHAND notified the Commission that, due to lack 
of economic support, it must rel inquish its designation as the 21 1 dialing code user. 

On November 2, 2009, the Commission received a letter stating that effective 
October 30, 2009, FirstLink will temporarily provide statewide 21 1 operations for North 
Dakota until a decision is made about 21 1 's future. Firstlink subsequently indicated It 
would provide statewide 2 1 1  operations until March 1 5, 201 0.  

On November 23, 2009, Firstlink filed a letter requesting designation as the 21 1 

dialing code user for North Dakota. 
. . .. . ... . .. ... .... . .. 

On November 25, 2009, the Commission issued a Notice of Opportunity for 
Hearing providing until January 8, 201 0  for comments and requests for hearing. No 
comments or requests for hearing were received. 

On January 1 4  and January 25, 201 0 ,  FirstLink filed affidavits of Cindy Miller, 
Executive Director of FirstLink, in support of the application. The January 25 affidavit 
stated that Firstlink is no longer interested in a statewide 21 1 designation due to a lack 
of stable long-term funding for the entire state. However, FirstLink would like to be the 
designated user of the 21 1 dialing code in Cass County. 

On February 1 0 , 201 0, the Commission authorized FirstLink to use the 21 1 

dialing code in Cass County. 

On February 1 9 , 201 0, a meeting of stakeholders was held to assess support for 
statewide 21 1 services going forward. 

29 · PU-09-713 Filed: 3/1 8/2010 Pages:2 
Order Designating Statewide 211 Dialing Code User 

Public SoJVIce Commission 



On February 1 9, 201 0, the Commission Issued a Notice of Intent to Reopen 
Proceeding because it had reason to believe that conditions of fact had changed and 
public Interest required the reopening of the proceeding. The Notice listed the following 
issues: 

1 .  Is any other entity interested In designation as the user of 
the 21 1 dial code in North Dakota? 

2. Is FirstLink's intended use of the 21 1 dial code In North 
Dakota consistent with the FCC intended use of that code? 

3. Is It In the public interest for the Commission to authorize 
Flrstllnk statewide use of the 2 1 1 dialing code, effective 
when Firstlink's 21 1 services are sufficiently funded? 

On March 4, 201 0, another meeting of stakeholders was held to assess support 
for statewide 21 1 services. 

On March 1 1 ,  201 0, FirstLink filed an affidavit of Cindy Miller supporting the 
application and requesting that the Commission authorize Flrstl.lnk as the statewide 
user of the 21 1 dialing code. 

FlrstLink's Intended use of the 21 1 dialing code is to create and maintain a 
database of programs and services, and then to disseminate this Information to 
individuals that dial the 21 1 code. FirstLink employs trained call specialists to answer 
information, referral, crisis, listening and support calls. Firstlink is certified In Alliance of 
Information and Referral Systems and has been a call center for many years. 

FirstLink's intended use of the 21 1 dial code in Cass County is consistent with 
the FCC intended use of that code and should be designated for such use. It Is In the 
public interest for the Commission to authorize FlrstLink statewide use of the 21 1 dialing 
code. 

Order 

FlrstLink is authorized to use the 21 1 dialing code in North Dakota for access to 
communitY information aiid refeiraf services� 

········ - . - - - . . .. 

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

Case No. PU-09-71 3  
Order Designating 2 1 1  Dialing Code User 
Page 2 

· 

Kevin Cramer 
Chairman 

Brian P. Kalk 
Commissioner 



February 1 1 th is National 2·1 ·1 Awareness Day 

Firstli n k's h e l p l ines a re o ne of the state's best a n d  most va luable  reso u rces,  yet I a m  su rprised 

by how many people do not know a bo ut the m .  Across the nation, February 1 1th is 2-1-1 

Awa ren ess Day ! When you re a d  o n  to learn more about Firstli nk's 2-1-1 H e l p l i ne, p l e a se pay it 

forwa rd by te l l ing someone in your circle of frie nds, neigh bors, or co l league s  a bout it. The 2-1-1 

he lp l ines l i ke the 411, 5 11, 811,  or 9 1 1  he lp l i nes can be a great resource fo r yo u !  

REFERRALS 

February 1 1th (2/11) is the offi c ia l "2-1-1 Awa reness Day" in recognition of t h e  free, easy to 

re m e m be r  phone n u m be r  that co n nects North Dakota residents a nd Clay Co u nty res ide nts to 

essentia l  community information a nd services such as basic needs, d isaste r a s sista nce, m i l itary 

support, d i sab i l ity support, support grou ps, vict im services, rent a n d  m o rtga g e  a ss ista nce, food 

a n d  s h e lter, tra nsportation, c h i l d ca re, senio r ca re, vo l u nteer opportunities, a nd m uch m o re .  

F irstli n k' s  c a l l  center ma i nta i n s  a co mprehensive database of hea lth a n d  h u m a n  services from 

a cross the state. Reside nts can a lso se a rch the data base o n l ine at www . myfi rstl i n k.org. I n  

20 12, F irstl ink  h a n d led 39,623 ca l l s  a nd made thousa n d s  o f  refe rrals.  Typica l ly, ca l l ers m a y  

receive seve ra l refe rra ls beca u se a n  ind iv idual  m a y  n e e d  m u ltiple services. For  exa m ple,  

someone may d i a l  2-1-1 for h o using assistance, but in ta lk ing through their  s it u ation with the 

ca l l  speci a l i st a lso req u i re su b stance a buse services, a n d  tra nsportation.  

CALL SPECIALISTS 

If yo u d i a l 2-1-1 on your phone, you wi l l  be co nnected to a h ighly tra i ned ca l l  s pecia l ist who wi l l  

ta l k  t h rough your needs, exp l o re the options and progra m s  that a re ava i l a b l e ,  and refer you to 

services that best fit your needs.  The help l ine isn't o n ly for those in despera te situations .  Ca l l  

specia l ists can assist with inq u i ries such as locating support groups in your a re a  a n d  fi n d i ng 

vo l u nteer opportunities that yo u m ay not have known a bout.  F irstlin k  ca l l  s pe cia l i sts a lso wi l l  

p rovide a nonjudgmenta l ear  for l i stening and support. 

SUICIDE/CRISIS/INTERVENTION 

Fi rstli n k  a lso h a n d les su ic ide a n d  crisis ca l ls  on the N ational  Suic ide P reven t i o n  Life l i ne 

( 1-800-273-8255) and a re fu l ly a ccredited by the American Association of S u i ci d o l ogy (AAS) and 

the Al l ia nce of I nfo rmation and Referra l Systems (AI RS) . I n  2012,  Firstli n k  a nsw e red 1,416 ca l ls  

that were suic ide re lated . 

J 



SERVICE AREA 
2 - 1 - 1  se rvice has been in  North Dakota si nce Fe bruary 11, 2004 . First l i n k  has been a nswering 

he lp l ines  for over 40 yea rs, a n d  has been answeri ng 2-1-1 ca l ls for a l l of N o rth Da kota and Clay 

County, M i nnesota s ince 2010.  ( F irstli n k  previously answered 2-1-1 ca l ls for Cass and C lay  

counties on ly, whi le a n other agency a nswered for the rest of  the state u nti l  2 0 10 when F i rstli n k  

took ove r 2-1-1 fo r t h e  entire state o f  N o rth Da kota a nd conti n ued its service fo r Clay Co u nty, 

M i n nesota . )  2-1-1 service is avai lab le to approxi m ate ly 90% of the U n ited States a nd has p rove n 

to be a n  inva l ua ble reso urce in the afte rmath of d isasters too. 2-1-1 is a l ife l o ng resource 

eve ryo ne needs to be aware at no m atter where you l ive. (See atta ched m a p . )  

2-1-1 i s  ava i la ble 2 4  hours a d a y, 7 days a week, every day of the ye a r. I f  yo u o r  someone you 

know needs help, d ia l  2-1-1.  I n  a d d it ion,  co nsider posting a l ink on yo ur com pa ny's i ntra n et o r  

d isplay 2 - 1 - 1  materials s o  yo u r  employees, co l leagues, and custome rs can b e n efit from t h is 

esse ntia I service if they a re ever in nee d .  

SUPPORTERS O F  FIRSTLINK 

Firstli n k  h a s  b e e n  supported b y  various departme nts from t h e  State o f  N orth Da kota, U n ited 

Ways from across the state, severa l c it ies a nd counties, fo undations a nd d o n o rs .  

Firstli n k  is  H E R E  F O R  YO U on February 111h just l i ke w e  are 365 days a y e a r .  W h e n  a person 

dia ls  2 -1-1, their  ca l l  wi l l  be a n swered by ca l l  special ists who wi l l  ask a s e ries of q uest i o n s  to 

determ i ne what services, info rmation o r  resou rces a re needed to help the c a l l e r. 

Remember 2-1-1 is the number to call to get help or to give help (volunteer). 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

Firstli n k's d i rect n um be r  to the help l ine is 701-235-7335(SEEK) or  s i m ply d i a l  2-1-1. You may 

a lso sea rch the reso urces on their website www.myfi rst l ink .org. 

I 



POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Arland H. Rasmussen 
Chief of Police 

To Whom It May Concern, 

January 301h, 2013 

The West Fargo Police Department has been associated with First Link for over I 0 years and 
have seen the services they provide extremely beneficial. 

First Link provides training in our schools and referral service to ANYONE in the State of North 
Dakota through 2 1 1 .  They have also been extremely important in coordinating volunteers 
during the floods Fargo and Moorhead experienced in past years. 

First Link is a key part of our Child Abduction Response Team (CART) and is part of the reason 
our law enforcement agencies have nationally recognized. 

First Link is a VERY valuable resource for our area and all of North Dakota. It is there when 
times are tough and help is needed the most. 

Respectfully, 

Arland H Rasmussen 
Chief of Police 

800 4 Avenue East, Suite 2 • West Fargo, ND 58078 • 70 1 -433-5500 • Fax: 70 1 -433-5508 
Tip Line: 70 1 -24 1 -5777 

www. westfargopolice.com 
Law Enforcement is a Community Effort 



From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Cindy M i l ler 
Executive Director 
First Link 

Mathern, Tim <tmathern@nd.gov> 
Monday, January 2 1 , 20 1 3  1 0:43 AM 
Cindy Miller 
LaFrancois, Greg; Lee, J udy E.; Hoffner, Dawn; Axness, Tyler 
S B2205 

I write in  support of SB2205 directing an appropriation of $ 3 2 5,000 to the 
office of management and budget for the purpose of providing a g rant for 
adm inistering statewide 2-1-1 services. 

Our goal as a leg is lature to support 2 1 1  when we f irst got i nvolved was to assist 
our c it izens and organizations to efficiently connect services and people. Thank 

;for continuing th is service when Mental Health America was no longer able to 
�ustain it. 

Whi le some of the support has been private donations there is a great pub l ic  need 
that this service meets. Additional publ ic investment is appropriate. The amount in  
th is  b i l l  i s  modest and well with in  the  means of  the  resources avai lable to  the 
leg is lature th is b iennium. · 

First Link is a critical service for c itizens across the state. Many social service 
agenc ies have l imited resources to market their services. A properly funded 211  
service is  important to bridge this gap. 

Be assured of my support for S B 2 205 and please look to me for help in committee 
del i berations. 

�enato r  Tim Mathern 
. --�io 4th st s 

Fargo ND 58103 
tmathern@nd.gov 

1 



sv�aij liqE;! H�Jselqn� 
Executive Director · 

Jaht,�"'ry 2 1 ,  201 �  

. .O�ndy M.ill�r, Ex�cutive Director 
Fir�t�ink I nc; . 
4357 131h Ave s. #1 07 
Fargo, Nb 5�H·o� -
O$ar Cindy, 

Mental Heal�h Ameri(l?l ,.of N9rth D?.kqta (MHANO) strong ly ·supports SB # 2205, to 
fund the ND 2�1-1 ptogram through Firstlink; hie. · 

MHAND ba_s be�n a·n �ctiv� 501 (c)� for ov�r 60 years. MHANb's mi.ssion i$ 
to prc;>rnqfe ment?l h,f;_?fth throqgh education� advocacy/ und�rstP.nding and access to 
quality care tot all in'dilliduals. 
The 2-1-1  pro� ram is a slghificali_t help to Mi-l�ND in the implementation of ()L!r tnisl>ion. 
A 24/7 ref�rral, �risi.s i;Hid s upportive listening help line program for people with 
betwvlqral he�lth (m�ntal Hines.� and substance us�) issues, and their fam fly members , 
is vital to cohfi�¢t individiJals with the services they need. 

sincereiy, 

C'\'Jd l( ' . . ��a� HE!Igel� 
E;xecutive bire¢tor 

l!fitl1!hiM H•l(• $11P.pnr( Unit�� W«Y �� forpsp:oiiiW#,»m.uiii(Y. �ww.m�����C?f.!» 
lfis111arck."" �23 Nprth 4ih str¢ei � P,D Bq�-4�9.9. - Bi�m!J�ck, Nb s8$0i-41o6 , Ph.9ne (.701) 2SS-?G!li • Fa.�:. PQl) �.�5�:24,11 

· · · Fargo0: 112 North. Unlverslfy1 surte 316 - Fargo, ND ssioi , Phone (70i) 237-5871 . Fai<'(7D1) i37"0562 



mNa Emergency 
Management 
Association 

NORTH DAKOTA 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

Mary Senger 
President 
Burleigh County Emergency Management 
2 2 1  N 51h Street 
Bismarck, ND 58501 
701 -222-6727 
msenger@nd.gov 

Brett La mbrecht 
1 11 Vice President 
Richland County Emergency Management 
4 1 8  2,., Ave N 
Wahpeton, ND 58075 
701 -642-7788 
blambrecht@co.richland.nd.us 

Koren Kemper! 
2" Vice President 
Cavalier County Emergency Management 
90 I 3'd Street, Suite 6 
Langdon, NO 58249 
701 -256-39 1 1 
kkempert@nd gov 

fl'" t:qhlslng 
•y· Treasurer 
�unty Emergency Management 

t.v • . •  .Jscum Drive West 
Dickinson, ND 58601 
701 -456-7605 
bfahlsing@starkcountynd.gov 

Michele Mnrthaller 
Member at Large 
Adams County Emergency Management 
PO Box 589 
Hettinger, ND 58639 
701 -567-4598 
adams-em@nd.gov 

Jerry Bergquist 
Member at Large 
Stutsman County Emergency Management 
205 61h St SE 
Jamestown, NO 5840 1 
701-252-9093 
.iligggui@nd.gov 

Jill Pedersen 
Past President 
Pembina County Emergency Management 
30 I Dakota St. 
Cavalier, ND 58220 
701 -265-4849 
jmpedersen@nd.gov 

Rick Robinson 
State Representative 
Nn DES 

X 55 1 1  
bk, ND 58502-55 1 1  

. _AS-8 1 06 
mrobinson@nd.gov 

Website: http://www.ndema.org 
Facebook: NDEMAssoc 
Twitter: NDEMAssoc 

January 28, 20 1 3  

RE: SUPPORT SB2205 

The North Dakota Emergency Management Association supports the 
amendment to SB 2205 to fund First Link 2- 1 - 1 .  

Our membership's daily job is planning and responding to emergency situations. 
First Link is  an asset to many of our communities during times of emergency as 
well as day-to-day situations. 

First Link is an asset to the State ofNorth Dakota and our North Dakota 
Emergency Management Association membership. 

The Board of Directors encourages you to support the amendment to SB 2205 to 
maintain funding for this organization. 

Z/L r::;: s.ngr 
President 



Lutheran 
Social Services 
of North Dakota 

January 29, 2013 

Cindy Mi l ler  

Executivr.: D i rector 

First Link 

4357 13 Ave S 

Fargo, ND 58103 
Re: SB2205 
Dear Ci ndy 

It is my pleasure to write a letter of support for the services of 2-1-1 .  As the Program Director of 

Luthera n  Social Services Gam blers Choice, we greatly appreciate the service of 2-1-1 across the state. 

Com p u lsive ga mble rs who a re fee l ing desperate, a lone a n d  potentia l ly su icida l  have a safe and 

supportive place to ca l l  for information or  j ust a listening ear.  

We are grateful that a caller from a nywhere in  the state can be referred, t h rough your extensive data 

base, for assistance wh ich may include support groups, professional  mental  health counselors, finan cia l 

advisors or treatment progra ms.  In some cases, It has been wonderful to know a ca l ler  has connected 

personal ly with an individual who has experienced the same difficulties, but has now fo und recovery. 

Please support fu nding fo r 2-1-1 on a statewide basis so that a l l  who are struggl ing, for whatever reason, 

may find a qua lified l istener who can d i rect them in their  sea rch for hea l i ng. 

g, C, N(; / ' 
Program Direct 

Lutheran Social Services Gamblers Choice 

Guided by God's love and grace, 
Lutheran Social Services of Norlh Dakota brings healing, help and hope. 

www. lssnd.org 



,��� -01 -25 1 3 : 33 

TO: Cindy Miller  

Stark DES 4567602 » 
...... 

,... -� �· fiR�,� .J!<I" 1 ,., .... • 4f\� /):"�)\ l:;\'(j_f.'' \ft: ��t I 

-···· ·  Answering rhe Caii,Eii��fllos,!'n�IJ.d �· � �· 
Next Generarlon ·�· � &-#+· ��· .:tc 1$;· 

From: North Dakota 911 Association 
Subject: SB2250 Support 
Date: January 25, 2013 

Ms. Miller, 

701 2352476 p 2/2 

I am writing In support of SB22{)S on behalf of the North Dakota 911 Association. Th is funding will 
provide FirstLink the resources to operate 2vl·l services In the state of North Dakota . Our state has 

benefited greatly from this essential service. Through this program, those In n eed are rapidly 
connected with appropriate services. it Is my belief that the partnership between Flrstllnk and the 
North Dakota 911 Association can reduce ca lls Into a 911 public safety a nswering point. Flrstllnk may 
refer to our 911 centers as needed, and help deescalate many ca llers so 911 services are not needed. 
In addition to referral and Information, 2-1-1 also helps those who need listening and support, 
especially during a disaster. 

This l_etter of support Is being sent In hopes that It will ensure Flrstllnk can continue to provide these 
much needed and necessary services. 

Please grant a "do pass11 to SS2lQS., 

Bill Fahlsing 
President 
N D911 Association 

2013 ND il11 Association Board1 Sill �uhlslns, President; Lit Beck, Vlco·PrOSidant; Karl� Germann, Sccrot�rv/Traasurer; Becky Aui� P�$t President: JBnelle 
Pepple, Membcr·ut·Lbrso 
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January 25, 201 3 

Sen. Judy Lee, Chairman 
1-Jumun Services Committee 
North Dakota State Capital 
600 B. Bou levard Ave. 
Bismarck, NO 58505 

Dear Senator Lee: 

North Dakota 
Insurance Deparilnent 

Adam W. Hmmn, Commissioner 

Since March 20 I 0, n group of state agencies 11nd non profits have worked togctheL' to keep 21 I going 
statewide aner an announcement that its funding would not fast. Now the legislature has the opportun ity 
to l'evive this vitnl set·vice long-term. 

2 1 1 is an important statewide t•esous·ce. It provided essential services to North Dakotans on behalf of the 
l nsmance Department during the last four Medicare Part D annual �nrolhi1ent periods. Ovet· 3,500 
beneficiaries called 2 I 1 in between 2009 and 20 1 2  to take advantage of the convenient service. By 
handling those en lis, 2 1  I enabled our Department to help even more North Dakotans during one of ou1· 
busiest times of the yea1·. 

2 1 1 is un important portal into many government services, and it deserves support ti·om our legislature. I 
encournge you to pass SB2205 for the citizens ofNot1h Dakota. 

Thank you fo1· your consideration. 

600 u. Boulevard Ave., Bismnrcl<, NP 5HSOS • (701)  328-2440 • Pn" (701) 328-48&0 • inRunmcc@nd.gov 
Consumllr ho!line: 1 -800-247-0560 • Rcluv ND 1TY l-800-366-688& • www.nd.nov/ndina 

id!0 0 2 /  0 0 2  

. .. .. ' .  ,,, . :  



ND Volunteers Organizations 

Active In Disaster Members: 

Adventist Community Services 

American Red Cross 

Catholic Charities NO 

Christian Reformed World Relief 

Church World Service 

Church of Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints 

Civil Air Patrol 

Firstlink/2·1·1 

Headwaters/Maridian Services 

Legal Servcles of NO 

Lutheran Disaster Response 

Mental Health America NO 

NECHAMA Jewish Response to Disaster 

NO Community Action Partnership 

ND Emergency Management Association 

NO League of Cities 

NO Psychological Association 

Presbyterian Church USA 

RSVP+ of NO 

Red River Radio Amateurs 

Souris Valley United Way 

The Salvation Army 

TouchGiobal Evangelical Free Church of Ameri
ca 

United Church of Christ 

United Methodist Disaster Response 

Associate Members: 

FEMA Region VIII 

NO Dept. of Emergency Services 

NO Dept. of Health 

NO Dept. of Human Services 

NDSU Dept. of Emergency Management 

NDSU Extension Service 

The ND Volunteer Organizations Active In Disaster (N DVOAD) 

writes In support of SB#2205. This funding will provide Firstlln k  the re

sources to operate 2-1·1 services In the state of North Dakota. Our state 

has benefited greatly from this essential service. Through this program, 

those In need are rapidly connected with appropriate services. In addi

tion to referral and Information statewide, 2 -1-1 also h elp's those who 

need listening and support. 

During times of disaster 2-1-1 1s a vital l ink to provide comfort 

and support to those affected by disaster and to assist with the dissemi· 

nation of Information during the disaster response and recovery phases. 

The continuation of 2-1·1 services In our state is essential to 

help provide support and resources to those In need. 

Please grant a "do pass" to SB#2205 

On behalf of the ND VOAD Membership 

Beth Dewald 

Chair N DVOAD 



__ dy Miller 

From: 
Sent: 

La Francois, Greg <Greg. LaFrancois@uhsinc.com> 
Monday, January 2 1 ,  201 3  4:46 PM 

To: 
S u bject: 

Cindy Mil ler 
Executive Director 
First Link 

Cindy Miller 
Letter of Support 

I write in support of SB22o5:'which wil l  provide Ffrstlink the resources to operate 2-1-1 services in the 
state of North Dakota . Our state has benefited greatly from this essential service. Through this 
program, those in need are rap idly connected with appropriate services. In addition to referral and 
information, 2-1-1 a lso helps those who need listening and support. They refer to our establishment, 
and help many find appropriate services. By way of example, last year they answered 1 ,416 calls 
that were suicide related and 39,623 calls on all phone l ines. 

The continuation of 2-1-1 services in our state is essential to help provide support and resources to 
those in need. 

Please grant a "do pass" to SB#2205 

Greg LaFrancois 
Chief Executive Officer 
Prairie St. John's Hospital 

1 
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@,u�· , .. Benefit Specialists 

To whom it  may con-cern, 

P. o. sox 1 oooG 
Fargo ND SBl OG 
.Phone; 701 .492.7372 
Fax: 208.445.2288 
Email: rlck@benefltspeciallsts.biz 

I would u rge a l l  members of the N D  State L�gislatur� to vote yes on  
$8#2205 . Th is .m�ney i s  needed to he l p  fund the First Lin k  2�1-1 
statewide network. Th ey do very impor�a nt work i n  the a rea o:f s u ic ide 
preve htion .  Again  i WOLI.Id urg$ you to consider th is b i l l with a h igh  
priority. 



JAN- 2 1 - 20 1 3  MON 0 5 : 36 PM 

January 21, 2013 

Dear Legislator: 

l am writing this letter In support of SB #2205 and 2-l-1. 

I first learned about 2-1-l when l was executive director of Missouri Slope Areawide (Bismarck

Mandan) United Way (MSAUW)-in fact, at the time 2-1-1 was endorsed by United Way of 

America. During my tenure, MSAUW provided funds to operate 2-l-l ln North Dakota, but not 

enough to fully support it. 

I feel that 2-l�l ls a convenient and vital service for the citizens of North Dakota. By dial ing just 
three easy-to-remember numbers, one can tap into a wealth of information about h uman 

services: health care, housing, transportation, senior services, addiction services, and more. My 
wife and I have used 2-1·1 on several occasions. 

I also know that 2-1�1 is a valuable resource In suicide prevention in the state. 2-1-1 operators 

are special ly trained to take calls from people who are at risk. Sometimes people who are lonely 

and depressed just need someone to talk to. 

The 2-1·1 service in North Dakota needs to grow and it should be promoted so that more 
people learn about it. I totally support 2-1·1 and I urge you to pass SB #2205. 

� 
Tom Regan 

813 Bryan Tra I 

Mandan, ND 58 54 

701-400-8844 

p, UU I 
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January 21, 2013 

To Whom It May Concern: 

HRRV FIRST FLR 

I am writing on behalf of biii'SB#2205 to help fund FirstLink's 2-1-1 statewide service. As a grief 
counselor who serves a var,iety of people In both rural and urban areas of North· Dakota, I have fou nd . 
this service to be instrumental in serving the people of North Dakota by providing access to health and 

· human service information that one may not otherwise be able to find. 

I have used it as Important referral resource fo.r my clients In need of both basic needs and social 
support: The 2-l-1 program is Important in making people self sufficient and helping them to build both 
the confidence and skills to overcome life's difficulties. 

I call on Firstllnk often to aid In finding resources for my clients and have their sta� speak to a group of 
my clientS to go over some of the benefits that the Flrstlink 2-1-1 service provides. Often times, clients 
comment that It Is a wonderful and necessary service and they wish they. had known sooner about this 
centralized resource. 

I also have been a call specialist In the past for Firstllnk. I can tell you this service can mean the 
difference between prevention and escalation of social problems. The call specialists are trained in a 
way to listen, provide support and referral - this In turn gives people both a d irection and hop·e. 

This Is one resource of the state that can affect everyone, and In my opinion, an investment i n  the 
people of the great state of North Dak9ta. please help fund it through �he SB #2205 bill. 

Sincerely,· ��,lfls,UJc.,tr 
Carrie Stenseth, MS, LPc; CT 



Payments to First link  2-1-1�_t,t.-o.5 ·-� 
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\'{ First Link 2-1-1 Services Grant 

Agency 2011-13 2013-15 

General Other Total General Other Total 

Adjutant General  0 88,700 88,700 0 16,800 16,800 

DHS 150,000 7,200 157,200 150,000 7,200 157,200 

H ealth Department* 162,079 0 162,079 0 0 0 ASIST (Applied S uicide Intervention S ki l ls  Training) 

Total $ 312,079 $ 95,900 407,979 $ 150,000 $ 24,000 174,000 

* $700,000 i ncluded in 2013-15 Budget for Suicide Grants. The $ 162,079 grant may be continued i nto the 2013-15 biennium dependant on successful outcomes. 

SB 2205 appropriates $325,000 to OMB for a grant admi nistering 2-1-1 services. 

H :\2013 2015 Bud Services 



Payme First link  2-1-1 

First Link 2-1-1 Services Grant 

Agency 2011-13 2013-15 

General Other Total General Other Total 

Adjutant G eneral 0 88,700 88,700 0 16,800 16,800 

DHS 150,000 7,200 157,200 150,000 7,200 157,200 

Hea lth Department* 162,079 0 162,079 0 0 0 ASIST (Applied Suicide Intervention Ski l ls Tra ining) 

Total $ 312,079 $ 95,900 407,979 $ 150,000 $ 24,000 174,000 

* $700,000 included in 2013-15 Budget for Suicide G rants. The $162,079 grant may be conti nued into the 2013-15 biennium dependant on successful outcomes. 

SB 2205 a ppropriates $325,000 to OMB for a grant administering 2-1-1 services. 
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Office of Ma nagment and Budget 
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First link 2-1-1 Services Grant 

Agency 2011-13 2013-15 

General Other Total General Other Total 

Adjutant General 0 88,700 88,700 0 16,800 16,800 

DHS 150,000 7,200 157,200 150,000 7,200 157,200 

Health Department* 162,079 0 162,079 0 0 0 ASIST (App l ied Suicide Intervention Ski l ls  Training) 
Total $ 312,079 $ 95,900 407,979 $ 150,000 $ 24,000 174,000 

* $700,000 i ncluded in 2013-15 B udget for Suicide G rants. The $ 162,079 grant may be continued into the 2013-15 biennium depend a nt on successful outcomes. 

SB 2205 appropri ates $325,000 to OMB for a grant administering 2-1-1 services. 

� 33 , q / 1  

H :\2013 2015 Budget\325 D HS\211 Services 

Office of Managment and Budget 



1 3.0444.02002 
Title. 

P repared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Mathern 

February 1 41 201 3  

P ROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2205 

Page 1 1 l ine 1 1 replace "office of management and budget" with "department of human 
services" 

Page 1 1  l ine 51 replace "$3251000" with "$2331979" 

Page 1 1 l ine 61 replace "office of management and budget" with "department of human 
services" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 



1 3.0444.02002 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Counci l  staff for 
Senator Mathern 

February 1 4, 201 3  
() , .... � '2 " V'" 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE B I LL NO. 2205 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  replace "office of management and budget" with "department of human 
services" 

Page 1 ,  line 5, replace "$325,000" with "$233,979" 

Page 1 ,  line 6, replace "office of management and budget" with "department of human 
services" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 I 
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First link 2-1-1 Services Grant 

Agency 2011-13 2013-15 

General Other Total General Other Total 

Adjutant General 0 88,700 88,700 0 16,800 16,800 

DHS 150,000 7,200 157,200 150,000 7,200 157,200 

H ealth Department* 162,079 0 162,079 0 0 0 ASIST {App l ied Suicide Intervention Ski l l s  Training} 
Total $ 312,079 $ 95,900 407,979 $ 150,000 $ 24,000 174,000 

* $700,000 i ncluded in 2013-15 Budget for Suicide Grants. The $ 162,079 grant m ay be continued into the 2013-15 biennium depend a nt on successful outcomes. 

SB 2205 appropriates $325,000 to OMB for a grant administering 2-1-1 services. 

;) 33 , 1 / j  

� 

� 
' 
� 

I 

\;:; 
H :\2013 2015 Budget\325 DHS\211 Services 
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Chairman Weisz and members of the House Human Services Committee, 

I am C indy Mi l ler, Executive Director of F i rstlink. I am here today to ask you to support 

SB #2205 requesting $325,000 in  funding for the upcoming biennium for the purpose of 

support ing and maintain ing 2-1 -1 service statewide. 

F irstlir,�k's Help l ine was inc<;>rporated in 1 971  an<;! continues to ensure, people have 

access to 24 hour information and referral about nonprofit human service and 

emergency resources as wel l  as l istening and support. P reviously, F i rstlink 

subcontracted with M HAN D to take 2-1 -1 cal ls for Cass County. But the end of October 

2009 we received a cal l  stating MHAND would no longer be taking 2-1 -1 cal ls. They 

wanted to know if we could continue the 2-1 - 1  statewide service in  the next few days. 

Our board bel ieved in the importance of 2-1 -1 and knew that to restart a p rogram would 

be extremely chal lenging and detrimental to people in North Dakota who rely on the 

service. So we decided to do whatever it took to continue 2-1 - 1  service statewide . . .  at 

least temporari ly. We realized that this would mean more cal ls, and more updating of 

our database would be needed, which would mean more expenses. 

Then the Publ ic Service Commissioners with concerned g roups and state departments 

g athered, the stories we heard about the importance of continuing 2-1 -1 was amazing. 

They stepped up and told us over and over again how essentia l  2-1 -1 service is to the 

citizens  of North Dakota. 

This is why I am here today! This service is our mission and passion and has been for 

over 40 years. F i rstlink is a h igh ly qualified 2-1 -1 cal l center. With certifications in  

American Association of Suicidology (AAS), Al l iance of Information and Referral 

Systems (AIRS), and a l l  staff are trained in Appl ied Suicide Intervention Ski l ls Tra in ing 

(AS IST). 



It seems everyone is  concerned about something these days. We are filled with fears -

about losing our h omes , jobs, retirement packages, freedom, and natural d isasters . 

However, since F i rstLink 2-1 -1 is here 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 d ays a yea r  

t o  provide resources and referrals to callers ,  we have the abi l ity to make gett ing help 

m uch easier. 

Did you know that on the back of the lottery tickets it says , "If gambling is no longer fun ,  

d ia l  2-1 - 1 "? 

Did you know the mi l itary encourages mil itary personnel and their fami l ies to call 

F i rstLink 2-1 -1 ? 

Did you know that the Nc:>rth Dakota I nsurance Department uses FirstLink 2-1 -1 to help 
. 

them with their annual d rug prescription registration process? 
· 

D id you know that the N O  SAVIN program uses FirstLink 2-1 - 1  for 24 hour information  

about victim services? 

Did you know that the North Dakota Department of Health is util izing Firstlink 2-1 - 1  to 

assist with the suicide support fol low up program across the state? 

D id you know that FEMA and the Adjutant General's Office both refer people during  

d isasters to  call F i rstLink 2-1 -1 ? 

These are just a few of the many ways the state uti l izes F i rstLink to accompl ish their 

programs.  We are there 24 hours a day to do the work for so many, yet we do not have 

secure funding. 

When it comes to d isaster services, F i rstLink has contracts with several local counties 

and cities to assist them during d isasters. I n  2009 they coord inated over 1 00 , 000 

volunteers and answered over 50,000 calls on a volunteer flood hotline related to 

d isaster p reparation and clean-up .  F i rstLink has the abi lity to assist as needed in  

d isasters through contracts and through 2-1 - 1 . F i rstLink 2-1 -1  can assist callers who 

have experienced a d isaster and are in need of resources and referrals to help them get 

through such difficult times. Year rou nd ,  F i rstLink understands that when basic needs 

are met, people are better able to cope with disaster. Therefore, by p rovid ing referrals 

for basic needs and by empowering cal lers , F irstLink 2-1 -1 helps strengthen the 

resi l ience of our state. 



To be more specific about our  services, F i rstlink 2-1 - 1 is a free helpl ine answered 24 

hours a day provid ing :  

Listen ing ,  support, information and referral about human service resources.  

Common 2-1 -1 referrals include, but are not l im ited to: 

D isasters 

Emergency Shelters 

F inancial Assistance 

Mi l itaryNeteran Support 

Support Groups 

Add ictions 

Disabi l ity Support 

Volu nteer Opportun ities 

Who needs F irstlink? 

All people . . .  anywhere in  North Dakota anytime! 

People who need resources and referrals 

People who need help during times of crisis 

People who are negatively impacted by the economy 

People with mental health issues 

People from ru ral communities where fewer resources may be avai lable 

People from large communities where many resources are avai lable 

Where d oes Firstlink 2- 1 -1 currently receive most of its funding? 

Over the years F i rstl ink's main funding source has been through the Un ited Way of 

Cass-C iay. They have and wil l continue to support F i rstlink's 2- 1 - 1 Helpl ine, Su icide 

Lifel ine, and suicide services for the Cass-C iay communities. F i rstl ink has contracts 

with Cass Cou nty, C lay County, and the C ities of Fargo,  Moorhead and West Fargo to 

provide d isaster services. They also have contracts with various human service 

agencies to provide crisis support after hours .  Currently 2- 1 - 1 statewide funding has 

been received from the North Dakota Department of Hea lth , North Dakota Department 

of Human Services, the Adjutant General 's Office, and other Un ited Ways from across 

the state. But th is current state support is done June 30 ,  20 1 3 . The demand for 

services provided by F i rstlink to North Dakota residents continues to increase, whi le 

funding is not secured for the next bienn ium.  The orig inal b i l l  requested $325 , 000,  but 

cu rrently states $233, 979 to support Firstlink's 2-1 -1 services . We received $233,979 



last biennium and an extra $ 1 20,000 the last week of J u ne 201 0  (which was the 

previous bienn ium) to help cover the losses we expected in this current biennium. So 

when they were looking at  the past support we received last biennium they d id not add 

the amount we received that last week of June 201 0. We received $1 00,000 from the 

North D akota Department of Human Services and an extra $20,000 from the Adj utant 

General 's Office. We are hoping you wil l sti l l  g rant us the $325,000. 

Why should the state invest i n  Firstlink 2-1 - 1 ?  

North Dakota's 2-1 -1 statewide service is i n  jeopardy without state funding . 

2-1 -1 is a free, easy to remember three digit number that ,is available 24/7 to the 

ENTIRE state of North Dakota. , Now is the time to invest in Firstlink  2-1 -1 . This wi l l  

assure that al l  citizens have i nformation about services available to them, includ ing 

disaster p reparation and rel ief services. 

At the moment North Dakota's 2-1 -1 service also benefits from Firstlink's partnersh ip  

with the N ational Suicide Prevention Lifeline 1 -800-273-8255 (TALK). At Firstlink a l l  

call specialists that answer 2-1 -1 also answer the suicide l ifeline. Therefore, F i rstlink 

2-1 - 1  cal l specia lists are not on ly trained in  information and referra l ,  but also in crisis 

and suicide prevention. Firstlink has found this training to be significantly beneficial 

since 2-1 -1 cal lers can very easily turn into suicidal callers. F i rstlink is the on ly cal l 

center in the state of North Dakota that takes cal ls on this designated national suicide 

l ifeline. The national network assures that no cal l  for help goes unanswered . 

I n  201 2 : 

Firstlink  deescalated hundred's of cal lers who were suicidal and needed a safe place to 

call to col laborate on a safety plan. These calls saved North Dakota law enforcement, 

fire departments, d ispatch centers, and EMT's h undred's of hours of time. By cal l ing 

Firstlink these departments did not need to d ispatch help for welfare checks, or spend 

time deescalating  citizens. 

Firstlink contracted to provide significant flood rel ief services. 

Firstlink  2-1 -1 g ives social service agencies a p lace for their clients to cal l  for crisis 

support on evenings and weekends. 



Fi rstlink 2-1 -1 gave shelter and financial i nformation to help keep citizens safe and off 

of the streets. 

F i rstlink 2-1 -1 gave hope to 39,623 callers who needed assistance. 

F i rstlink answered 1 ,41 6  cal ls related to suicide on al l  phone l ines. 

F i rstlink 2-1 -1 answered calls from 5 1  counties in North Dakota. 

It d oesn't matter who you are or where you l ive with financial assistance by the state, all 

North Dakota residents wi l l  be able to get help and support. Large cities, rura l  areas, 

we a re there for everyone, n ight and day. 

There are letters of support attached also in your packets. 

Chai rman Weisz, thank you for the opportunity 'to appear before your  committee today. ' 

If a ny of you have any q uestions I wi l l  be happy to respond. 

C indy M il ler 

F irst Link Executive Director 

(701 )-293-6462 

cindym@myfirstl ink .org 



COMMISSIONERS 

Brian P. Kalk 
Randy Christmann 
Julie Fedorchak 

Executive Secretary 
Darrell Nitschke 

Public Service Commission 
State of North Dakota 

Honorable Judy Lee, Chairman 
Human Services Committee 
North Dakota Senate 
600 East Boulevard A venue 
Bismarck, ND 5 8505 

Re: Senate Bill 2205 

Dear Chairman Lee: 

January 29, 2013 

600 East Boulevard, Dept. 408 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0480 

Web: www.psc.nd.gov 
E-mail: ndpsc@nd.gov 

Phone: 701-328-2400 
ND Toll Free: I-877-245-6685 

Fax: 701-328-2410 
TDD: 800-366-6888 or·7 l l  

I am writing to strongly support funding for statewide 2- 1-1 service. In my years 
with the Public Service Commission, the importance of statewide 2- 1-1 service is clear. 

The Public Service Commission designated FirstLink as North Dakota's 2-1-1 
provider in March 201 0  (a copy ofthe Commission's order is attached). As you can see 
from the history summarized in the Order, sufficient funding is crucial to any effort to 
provide 2-1-1  service to North Dakota residents. 

Thank you for your consideration of the proposal to fund a statewide 2-1-1 
program. I ask for your favorable action on SB 2205 . If you have any questions, please 
do not hesitate to call or e-mail. 

c:w/encl 
Senator Oley Larsen, Vice Chairman 
Senator Tyler Axness 
Senator Dick Dever 
Senator Howard C. Anderson, Jr. 

Best regards, 

Chairman 

3 LA-63-2205 Filed: 1 /29/201 3  Pages: 3  
Letter to Committee Chair regarding support of 
SB-2205 

Public SetVice Commission 

Commissioner Brian Kalk 

I 
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FirstLink 
2 1 1  Designation 
Application 

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

PUBLIC S ERVICE COMMISSION 

Case No. PU-09-713 

ORDER DESIGNATING STATEWI D E  21 1 DIALING CODE USER 

M arch 1 8, 201 0  

The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) has designated the 2 1 1 dialing 
code to provide direct access to organizations providing community information and 
referral services that are currently not available through the 9 1 1 emergency code or the 
3 1 1 police non-emergency code. 

On September 24, 2003, the Commission designated the Mental Health 
Association in North Dakota (MHAND), as the user of the 2 1 1 dialing code statewide in 
North Dakota. 

On March 7, 2007, the Commission authorized MHAND to subcontract 2 1 1 
operations in North Dakota. MHAND subcontracted with Firstlink for the provision of 
2 1 1 in Cass County. 

I n  its October 30, 2009 letter, MHAND notified the Commission that, d ue to lack 
of economic support, it must relinquish its designation as the 2 1 1 dialing code user. 

On November 2, 2009, the Commission received a letter stating that effective 
October 30, 2009, Firstlink will temporarily provide statewide 2 1 1 operations for North 
Dakota until a decision is made about 2 1 1 's future. Firstlink subsequently indicated It 
would provide statewide 2 1 1  operations until March 1 5, 201 0.  

On November 23, 2009, Firstlink filed a tetter requesting designation as the 2 1 1 
d ialing code user for North Dakota. 

- .  . . .. - · - . ... . .... . . . . .. 

On November 25, 2009, the Commission issued a Notice of Opportunity for 
Hearing providing until January 8, 201 0  for comments and requests for hearing. No 
comments or requests for hearing were received. 

On January 14 and January 25, 201 0 ,  Firstlink filed affidavits of Cindy Miller, 
Executive Director of Firstlink, in support of the application. The January 25 affidavit 
stated that Firstlink is no longer interested in a statewide 2 1 1 designation due to a lack 
of stable long-term funding for the entire state . However, Firstlink would like to be the 
designated user of the 21 1 d ialing code in Cass County. 

On February 1 0 ,  201 0, the Commission authorized Firstlink to use the 21 1 
dialing code in Cass County. 

On February 1 9 , 201 0,  a meeting of stakeholders was held to assess support for 
statewide 2 1 1 services going forward . 

29 · PU-09-713 Filed: 311 81201 0 Pages:2 
Order Designating Statewide 211 Dialing Code User 

Public Service Commission 
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On February 1 9, 201 0, the Commission issued a Notice of Intent to Reope n  
Proceeding because it had reason to believe that conditions of fact had changed and 
public interest required the reopening of the proceeding. The Notice listed the following 
issues: 

1 .  Is any other entity interested in designation as the user of 
the 21 1 d ial code in North Dakota? 

2. Is FirstLink's intended use of the 21 1 d ial code in North 
Dakota consistent with the FCC intended use of that code? 

3. Is it in the public interest for the Commission to authorize 
FirstLink statewid e  use of the 21 1 d ialing code, effective 
when FirstLink's 21 1 services are sufficiently funded? 

On March 4, 201 0,  another  meeting of stakeholders was held to assess support 
for statewide 21 1 services. 

On March 1 1 ,  201 0, FirstLink filed an affidavit of Cindy Mlller supporting the 
application and requesting that the Commission authorize FirstLink as the statewid e  
user of the 21 1 d ialing code. 

Firstlink's intended use of the 21 1 dialing code is to create and maintain a 
database of programs and services, and then to d isseminate this information to 
individuals that d ial the 21 1 code. FirstLink employs trained call specialists to answer 
information, referral, crisis, listening and support calls. FirstLink is certified In Alliance of 
I nformation and Referral Systems and has been a call center for many years . 

FirstUnk's intended use of the 21 1 dial code in Cass County is consistent with 
the FCC intended use of that code and should be d esignated for such use. It is in the 
public interest for the Commission to authorize Firstlink statewid e  use of the 21 1 dialing 
code. 

Order 

FirstUnk is authorized to use the 21 1 dialing cod e  in North Dakota for access to 
communit)i inforrriation 'aiid reftirrarseiVfces: 

···· ······-· . ···· -·- · ··· · -·-·- . ·- - -· ·  . ... . . . . .. . 
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

Case No. PU-09-713 
Order Designating 211  Dialing Code User 
Page 2 

Kevin Cramer 
Chairman 

Brian P. Katk 
Commissioner 

1: : 



DlND Emergency 
Management 
Association 

NORTH DAKOTA 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

Mary Senger 
President 
Burleigh County Emergency Management 
221 N 511' Street 
B ismarck, ND 58501 
?CH-222-6727 
msenger@nd.gov 

Brett Lambrecht 
I"  Vice Presidcrii 
Richland County Emergency Management 
4 1 8  2nd Ave N 
Wahpeton, ND 58075 
701-642-7788 
blambrecht@co.richland.nd.u� 

Karen Kemper! 
2" Vice President 
Cavalier County Emergency Management 
901 3'd Street, Suite 6 
Langdon, ND 58249 
701-256-391 1 
kkempert@nd.gov 

lill Fnhls1ng 
Secretary-Treasurer 
Stark County Emergency Management 
66 Museum Drive West 
Dickin$on, ND 58601 
701-456-7605 
bfah1sing@starkeountynd.gov 

Michele Mnrthnllcr 
Member at Large 
Adams County Emergency Management 
PO Box 589 
Hettinger, 1-!D 58639 
701 -567-4598 
adams-em@nd.gov 

Jerry Bergquist 
Mcr)lbcr at Large 
Stutsman County Emergency !vhmagcmcnt 
205 611' St SE 
Jamestown, ND 58401 
701-252-9093 
.i.Qm:ggu i@nd. gov 

Jill Pedersen 
Past President 
Pembina County Emergency Management 
30 I Dakota St. 
Cavalier, ND 58220 
701-265-4849 
jmpederscn@nd.gov 

Rick Robinson 
Staie Representative 
ND DES 
PO Box 55 1 1  
Bismarck, ND 58502-5 5 1 1 
701 -328-8 106 
rnrobinson@nd.gov 

Website: http://www.ndema.org 
Facebook: NDEMAssoc 
Twitter: NDEMAssoc 

January 28) 201 3  

RE :  SUPPORT SB2205 

The North Dakota Emergency Management Association supports the 
amendment to SB 2205 to fund First Link 2-1 - 1 .  

Our membership's  daily job is planning and responding to emergency situations. 
First Link is an asset to many of our communities during times of emergency as 
well as day-to-day situations. 

First Link is an asset to the State of North Dakota and our North Dakota 
Emergency Management Association membership. 

The Board of Directors encourages you to support the amendment to SB 2205 to 
maintain funding for this organization. 



.. :iy Miller 
From: Sent: To: Cc: Subject: 

Cindy M i l ler 
Executive Dir ector 
First Link 

Mathern, Tim <tmathern@nd.gov> 
Monday, January 21 , 2013 1 0:43 AM 
Cindy Miller 
LaFrancois, Greg; Lee, Judy E.; Hoffner, Dawn; Axness, Tyler 
SB2205 

I write i n  support of SB220.5 d i recting an appropriation of $ 3 25,000 to the 
office of management and budget for the purpose of providing a grant for 
administer ing statewide 2-1-1 services. 

Our goal as a l eg islature to support 211  when we f irst got invo l ved was to assist 
our c itizens and organizations to efficiently connect services and people. Thank 

· 'OU for continuing this service when Mental Health America was no l onger ab le  to 
:;ustain it. 

Whi le  some of the support has been private donations there is a great publ ic  need 
that thi s  service meets. Additional publ ic  i nvestment is appropriate. The amount i n  
t h i s  b i l l  i s  modest and wel l  with i n  the means of the resources avai lable to the 
l eg is lature this b iennium. · 

First Lin k  is  a critical service for c itizens across the state. Many social  servic� 
agenc ies  h ave l im ited resources to market their services. A p ro perly funded 211  
service is  i mportant to bridge this gap. 

Be assured of my support for S B2205 and please look to me for help  in committee 
de l iberat ions. 

Senator Tim Mathern 
510 4th St S 
Fargo ND 58103 
tmathern@nd.gov 

1 



Susan It · e Het · eland 
. · ·  ,. · ·.y g ' . · ·.· � . . . 
Ex�cutrve Director 

. .  , ;: .. . :._ : ·-·· ·- . 

· .Qj.n�Y. f0ill�r, E.x�cutlve Dir€?ctor 
FirstLink lno. . 

· 

4357 .1's1h AVe. s. #1 07 
Farge, ND 58fos· · 

D�ar Oindy, 
Mental Health Air\erlO.?! pf N9rth D?.kpt� (MHANP) strongly ·SlJpports SB # 1205, to 
fund fhe ND 2�·1-1 program through i=irstUnk; lric, 

· 

MHAND ba.s P.�!3n a-n ;astiv£;? 601 (c)� for ov�r aq years. MHANb'$ t'r)lssion i� 
tq P.r9mqte .menf?) h.?_�{th throqgh eduqafiQn advocC�oy, IJnd�tst�mding and aco�ss to 
quality-oarf1 fot ?II in'div/t;Iu�l�. 
The �M1 -1 p_ro�ram ls a $.lghiflca1i_1 help to ry1HAND in the implementation of 9Llf tniss.io_n. 
A 2417 refE?m;il, i;.:fisi.$ �:riq s�pportive listeriilig help line program fo� p�pple with 
peh�ylq.ral he�Jth (m�n't?l i\ln�.s.� an(! sub�tance u&�) issues, and their family members� 
is vital to connc:;t;t !ridivi(;l(Ja1s with the servic;es they need. 

sinooreiy, 

"'iL l  -, , . . ��1$$ H�·lgel� E;x�c�;�liv� b.ir�C.fo.r 

-��� � for(lsttj!iiJii!."f'"niilu�I(Y. wwwqmhan".()!f'SJ . . 
. . . · ... ... �-.:-· - :. .. �::. 
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POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Arland H. Rasmussen 
Chief of Police 

To Whom It May Concern, 

January 301h, 2013 

The West Fargo Police Department has been associated with First Link for over 10 years and 
have seen the services they provide extremely beneficial. 

First Link provides training in our schools and referral service to ANYONE in the State of North 
Dakota through 21 1.  They have also been extremely important in coordinating volunteers 
during the floods Fargo and Moorhead experienced in past years. 

First Link is a key part of our Child Abduction Response Team (CART) and is part of the reason 
our law enforcement agencies have nationally recognized. 

First Link is a VERY valuable resource for our area and all ofNorth Dakota. It is there when 
times are tough and help is needed the most. 

Respect.fitlly, 

Arland H Rasmussen 
Chief of Police 

800 4 Avenue East, Suite 2 • West Fargo, ND 58078 • 701-433-5500 • Fax: 701-433-5508 
Tip Line: 701-241-5777 

www. westfargopolice.com 
Law Enforcement is a Community Effort 



lutheran 
Social Services 
of North Dal<ota 

January 29, 2013 

Cindy M iller 
Executive Director 
First Link 
4357 13 Ave s 
Fargo, ND 58103 

Re: SB2205 

Dear Cindy 

It is my pl�asure to write a l etter of support for the services of 2-1-1. As the Program Director of 
Lutheran Social Services G amblers Choice, we greatly a ppreciate the service of 2-1-1 across the state. 
Compulsive gamblers who a re feeling desperate, a lone and potentially suicidal  have a safe and 
supportive p lace to cal l  for information o r  just a listen ing ear. 

We a re grateful that a caller from a nywhere in the state can be referred, through your extensive data 
base, for assistance which may include support groups, professional m e ntal health counselors, financia l 
advisors or treatment progra ms. In some cases, it has been wonderful to know a caller has connected 
personal ly with an individual who has experienced the same d ifficulties, but has now found recovery. 

Please support funding for 2-1-1 on a statewide basis so that a t! who are struggling, for whatever reason, 
may find a qual ified listener who can d i rect them In  their search fo r hea ling. 

Sincerely, 
, 

) d�lf2!f··i J-,lk-; t_.ec:_. 
Lis��, N� 
Program Direct · 

Lutheran Social Services Gamblers Choice 

Guided by God's love and grace, 
Lutheran Social Services o f  Norlh Dakota /JTings healing, help and hope. 

www.lssnd.org 



2013�01 ·25 13 :33 

TO: Cindy Miller 

Stark DES 
...... .. 

, ............. 
··�nswerlng rhe Call 
N&Xt Gtmeratlon 

rrom: North Dakota 911 Association 
Subject: SB2250 Support 
Date: January 25, 2013 

Ms. Miller, 

4567602 » 7012352476 p 2/2 

I am wrltlng fn support of SB220S on behalf of the North Dakota 911 Association. This funding will 
provi�e FlrstLink the resources to operate 2 .. 1·1 services in the state of North Dakota. Our state has 
benefited greatly from this essential service. Through this program, those In need are rapidly 
connected with appropriate servlc:es. It Is my belief that the partnership between Flrst!.ink and the 
North Dakota 911 Association can reduce calls Into a 911 public safety answering point. Flrs:tllnk may 
refer to our 911 centers as needed} and help deescalate many calters so 911 services are not needed. 
In addition to referral and Information, 2·1-.1 also helps those who need listening and support} 
especially during a disaster. 

This l.etter of support is being sent In hopes that it will ensure FlrstLink can continue to provlde these 
much needed and necessary services. 

Please grant a "do pass'1 to SS2l05Q 

Bil l  rahlsing 
President 
N09ll Association 

2Ql.3 NP 911 Association BoDIQi aJII Fuh!sins, Preslden!; Lit B�ck, Vf�II·PrO$ld�ntJ Karin Germnnn1 S�Qr¢tttrv/rrcasurar; Becky Ault, Pll$t PrOS!d¢nt; Janelle 
Pepple, MeMb�t·bt•LQrSQ 

I I 
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January 25, 2013 

Sen. Judy Lee, Chail'mnn 
Human Services Committee 
North Dakoh� St!1te Capital 
600 E. Boulevard Ave. 
Bismarck, ND 58505 

Deur Senator Lee: 

North Dakota 
Insurance Depari1.nent 

Adam W. Hamm, Commissioner 

Since March 20 I 0, n group of state agencies fllld nonproi'its have worked together to keep 2 1 1  going 
statewide nf'te1· nn announcement that Its funding would 110t last. Now the legislature has the opportunity 
to 1'evive this vital service long-term. 

2 1 1 is an important' statewide resomcc. It provided essential services to North Dakotans on behalf of the 
lnsmauce Department during the last four Medicare Pmt D an11ual �nrolhilent periods. Over 3,500 
beneficiaries cal led 21 1 in between 2009 and 2012 to take advnntnge ofthe convenient service . .By 
handling those calls, 2 1 1  enabled our Depnrtment to help even mol'e North Dakotans during one of ott!' 
busiest times of the year. 

2 1 1 Is un !mptwtant potial lnto many government services, and it deserves support ti·om our legislntllre. 1 
encour�ge you to pass SB2205 for the citizens ot'NOlth Dakota. 

Thank you fot· your consideration. 

Sincerely, ---;?/ 
�...-' .  I' . ....,,. � ,_,., ,............ 

Ada Hnmm /n'Snnmoe Comnfi ll1er 

600 u. Boulcvnrd Avc., l3iRmnrcl(, NIJ 58505 • (701) 328-2440 • l7ax. (701) 328-48&0 • inRIII1tncc@nd.gov 
Consumur hotline; 1 ·800-247-0560 • Rcltw ND TrY 1·800-366-6888 • www.nd.Rov/mlins 

..., .. .  • '\\ .: 



NO Volunteers Organizations 

Active In Disaster Members: 

Adventist Community Services 

American Red Cross 

Catholic Charities ND 

Christian Reformed World Relief 

Church World Service 

Church of Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints 

Civil Air Patrol 

Firstllnk/2-1-1 

Headwaters/Meridian Services 

legal Servcies of NO 

Lutheran Disaster Response 

Mental Health America NO 
fiiECHAMA Jewish Response to Disaster 

NO Community Action Partnership 

NO Emergency Management Association 

NO League of Cities 

ND Psychological Association 

Presbyterian Church USA 

RSVP+ of ND 

Red River Radio Amateurs 

Souris Valley United Way 

The Salvation Army 

Touch Global Evangelical Free Church of Ameri
ca 

United Church of Christ 

United M ethodist Disaster Response 

Assoclate M embers: 

FEMA Region VIII 

NO Dept. of Emergency Services 

NO Dept. of Health 

ND Dept. of Human Services 

NDSU Dept. of Emergency Management 

NOSU Extension Service 

The ND Volunteer Organizations Active in Disaster {NDVOAD) 
writes in support of SB#2205. This funding will provide Firstlink the re
sources to operate 2-1·1 services in the state of North Dakota. Our state 
has benefited greatly from this essential service. Through this program, 
those in need are rapidly connected with appropriate services. In addi
tion to referral and Information statewide, 2-1-1 also help's those who 
need listening and support. 

During times of disaster 2-1-1 is a vital fink to p rovide comfort 
and support to those affected by disaster and to assist with the dissemi
nation of information during the disaster response and recovery phases. 

The continuation of 2-1-1 services in our state is essential to 
help provide support and resources to those in need. 

Please grant a "do pass" to SB#2205 

On behalf of the ND VOAD Membershi� 

Beth Dewald 

Chair N DVOAD 



. ..._ dy Miller 
From: 
Sent: 

LaFrancois, Greg <Greg. LaFrancois@uhsinc.com> 
Monday, January 21 ,  201 3  4:46 PM 

To: Subject: 

Cindy Miller 
Executive Director 
First Link 

Cindy Miller 
Letter of Support 

I write in support of SB2266.:'which wil l  provide Firstlink the resources to operate 2-1 -1 se�Yices in the 
state of North Dakota. Our state has benefited greatly from this essential service. Through this 
program, those in need are rapidly connected with appropriate services. In  addition to referral and 
information ,  2-1 -1 also h elps those who need listen ing and support. They refer to our establishment, 
and help many find appropriate services. By way of example, last year they answered 1 ,41 6 calls 
that were suicide related and 39,623 calls on all phone lines. 

The continuation of 2-1 -1  services in our state is essential to help provide support and resources to 
those in need. 

Please grant a "do pass" to 88#220.5.". 

Greg LaFrancois 
Chief Executive Officer 
Prairie St. John's Hospital 

l 

I 



�Benefit Specialists P. o. Bok 1 ooOG 
Fargq ND SB1 06 

.Phone; 701 .492.7372 
Fax: 208.445.2288 
Em;�ll: rkk@benefltspedallsts.biz 

. To whom it may concern, 
I wou·Jd u rge af l  members of th� No State LE�gi�latur� to vote yes on 
$B#22QS . ihis rnpney i$ neec{ed to help fund the First Link 2--1-1 
statewi�e nE;tw·ork. they do very im)Jor�a nt work in the area o:f S!Jicide 
preverttion .  Again i vyo �ild Urg� you to ·cohsider th is bi l l  with a high 
priority. 

I 



JAN- 2 1 - 20 1 3  MON 05 : 36 PM 

January 2:1., 2013 

Dear legislator: 

I am writing this letter In support of SS #2205 and 2-1-:L. 

I first learned about 2�1-l when I was executive director of Missouri Slope Areawide (Bismarck
Mandan} United Way {MSAUW)-in fact/ at the time 2-:1.-1 was endorsed by United Way of 
America. During my tenure1 MSAUW provided funds to operate 2.-1-:l. ln North Dakota, but not 
enough to fully support !t. 

I feel that 2-1�1 1s a convenient and vital service for the citizens of North Dakota. By dialing just 
three easy-to-remember numbers, one can tap Into a wealth of information about human 
services: health care1 housing1 transportation, senior services, addiction services, and more. My 
wife and I have used :Zu1·1 on several occasions. 

I also know that 2-1u1 is a valuable resource in suicide prevention in the state. 2-1-1 operators 
are specially trained to take calls from people who are at risk. Sometimes people who are lonely 

and depressed just need someone to talk to, 

The 2-1·1 servlce in North Dakota needs to grow and it should be promoted so that more 

people learn about it. I totally support 2-1M1 and l urge you to pass ss #2205, 

� 
Tom Regan 

813 Bryan Tra I 
Mandan, ND 58 54 
701-400·8844 

p, 0 0 1 I 
I I 
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January 21, 2013 

To Whom It May Concern: 

I l'!m writing on behalf of bi!I'SB#2205 to help fund Firstlink's 2+1 statewide service. As a grief 
counselor who serves a varJety of people in both r�ral and urban areas of North· Dakota, I have found . 
this service to be instrumental ip serving the people of North Dakota by providing access to health and 

· human service information that one may not otherwise be able to find. 

I have used It as important referral resource fo_r my clients in need of both baslc needs and social 
support: The 2-1-1 program is important in making people self sufficient and helping them to build both 
the confidence and skills to overc0me life's difficulties. 

I call on Firstlink often to aid in finding resources for my clients and have their staff speak to a group of 
my clientS to go over some of the benefits that the Firstlink 2-1-1 service provides. Often times, clients 
comment that it is a wonderful and necessary service and they wish they. had known sooner about this 
centralized resource. 

I also have' been a call specialist in the past for Firstlink. I can tell you this service can mean the 
difference between prevention and escalation of social problemS. The call specialists are trained in a 
way to listen, provide support and referral- this in turn gives people both a direction and hope. 

This Is one resource of the state that can affect everyone, and in my opinion1 an investment in the 
people of the great state Df North Dal<qta. please help fund it through �he SB #2205 bill. 

Sincerely,. 

��,Jts,wc_tr 
Carrie Stenseth, MS, LPC� CT 

I 



What services does Firstlini( offer? 

F i rstlink operates North Dakota's 2-1 -1 Helpline and is the only call center to answer the 

National Suicide Prevention Lifeline in North Dakota. 

24 hours a day FirstLink provides: 
Listening and s upport- a n onjudgmental, supportive, l istening ear 

I nformation and referral- about nonprofit/government h uman service reso urces and 

volunteer opportunities 

Common referral topics i nclu de, but are not limited to: 

• Abuse/Assault 

• Addictions 

0 Disabilities 
e Disasters 

• Education 

® Emergency Shelters 

Gl Financial Assistance 

Ill Health Care 

Ill Mental Health 

Ill MilitaryNeteran Support 

fl) Substance Abuse 

Ell Support Groups 

Ell Volunteer Opportunities 

Who needs Firstlini\? 

• All people . . .  anytime,  anywhere in North Dakota. 

• People seeking information and community resources. 

• People who are experiencing financial hardship. 

• People with mental health concerns. 
• People from rural communities where fewer resources may be available. 

• People from large communities where many resources may be available. 

Continue 



firstlink. makes a difference: fStatistics from 201 2) 
• Firstlink 2-1 -1  deescalated hundreds of callers who were suicidal and needed a safe place 

to call to collaborate on a safety plan. 

• These calls saved North Dakota law enforcement, fire departments, dispatch centers, and 

E MT's hundreds of hours of time. By calling Firstlink, these departments were not called to 

dispatch help for welfare checks or spend time deescalating citizens. 

• Firstlink 2-1 -1 gives social services agencies a place for their clients to call for listening and 

support on evenings and weekends. 

• Firstlink 2-1 -1 gave shelter and financial information to help keep citizens safe and off the 

streets. 

• Firstlin k  2-1 - 1  gave out over 1 8, 700 resources. 

• Firstlink 2-1 - 1  gave hope to 39,623 callers who needed assistance. 

• Firstlink received 1 ,41 6 calls related to suicide on all phone lines. 

• Firstlink received calls from 5 1  North Dakota counties in 201 2. 

firstlinl<'s funding sources: 

One of Firstlink's main funding sources has been through the U nited Way of Cass-Clay. They 

have and will continue to support FirstLink's 2-1 -1 Helpline, Suicide Lifeline and suicide support 

services for the Cass-Clay communities. I n  the past, 2-1 - 1  statewide funding has been received 

from the North Dakota Department of Health, North Dal<ota Department of Human Services, 

North Dakota Adjutant General's office, funders, donors, and other U nited Ways from across the 

state. The current state support ends June 30, 201 3. The demand for services provided by 

Firstlink to N orth Dakota residents continues to increase, while funding decreases. 

Why should the state i nvest in firs!Unlt: 2-1 -1 ? 
North Dakota's 2-1 - 1  statewide service is in jeopardy without state funding.  2-1 -1 is a free, easy 

to remember three digit phone number that is available 24/7 to the ENTIR E  state of North 

Dakota. N ow is the time to invest in FirstLink. This will ensure all citizens have the ability to talk 

with a nonjudgmental person who can provide information on services available to them. 

FirstLink is also connected to the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline. All FirstLink staff are 

trained in suicide intervention skills. FirstLink is the only call center in the state of North Dakota 

which takes calls on this designated suicide lifeline. This national network assures that no call 

for help goes unanswered. 

firstlin k  H istory 

Firstlink's original helpline was incorporated in 1 97 1  to ensure people have 24 hour listening, 

support, information,  and referral about nonprofit human service resources. In  201 0, the Public 

Service Commission designated FirstLink as the 2-1 - 1  provider for the entire state of North 

Dakota. FirstLink had previously subcontracted with Mental Health America North Dakota 

(MHAND) to take 2-1 - 1  calls for Cass County, North Dakota. 

FirstLink's mission is to assist people in identifying, accessing,  and mal<ing effective use of 

comm unity and volunteer resources. 



COMMISSIONERS 

Brian P. Kalk 
Randy Christmann 
Julie Fedorchak 

Executive Secretary 
Darrell Nitschke 

Public Service Commission 
State ofNorth Dakota 

Representative Robin Weisz, Chairman 
House Human Services Committee 
600 East Boulevard A venue 
Bismarck, ND 58505 

Re: Senate Bill 2205 

Dear Chairman Weisz: 

March 26, 201 3  

600 East Boulevard, Dept. 408 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0480 

Web: www.psc.nd.gov 
E-mail: ndpsc@nd.gov 

Phone: 701-328-2400 
ND Toll Free: 1 -877-245-6685 

Fax: 701-328-24 10 
TDD: 800-366-6888 or 71 1 

I am writing to strongly support funding for statewide 2-1 - 1  service. In my years 
with the Public Service Commission, the importance of statewide 2-1 - 1  service is clear. 

The Public Service Commission designated FirstLink as North Dakota's 2-1 - 1  
provider in March 20 10  (a copy o f  the Commission's  order i s  attached). As you can see 
from the history summarized in the Order, sufficient funding is crucial to any effort to 
provide 2-1 - 1  service to North Dakota residents. 

Thank you for your consideration of the proposal to fund a statewide 2- 1 - 1  
program. I ask for your favorable action on S B  2205. If you have any questions, please 
do not hesitate to call or e-mail. 

c:w/encl 
Representative Curt Hofstad, Vice Chairman 
Representative Dick Anderson 
Representative Chuck Damschen 
Representative Alan Fehr 
Representative Dwight Kiefert 
Representative Vernon R. Laning 
Representative Alex Looysen 

Brian P. Kalk 
Chairman 

Representative Gail Mooney 
Representative Naomi Muscha 
Representative Kylie Oversen 
Representative Todd Porter 
Representative Peter F. Silbernagel 



Firstlink 
21 1 Designation 
Application 

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

Case No. PU-09-713 

ORDER DESIGNATING STATEWIDE 21 1 DIALING CODE USER 

March 18, 2010 

The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) has designated the 2 1 1  dialing 
code to provide direct access to organizations providing community information and 
referral services that are currently not available through the 91 1 emergency code or the 
3 1 1 police non-emergency code. 

On September 24, 2003, the Commission designated the Mental Health 
Association in North Dakota (MHAND), as the user of the 21 1 dialing code statewide in 
North Dakota. 

On March 7, 2007, the Commission authorized MHAND to subcontract 21 1 
operations in North Dakota. MHAND subcontracted with Firstlink for the provision of 
21 1 in Cass County. 

In its October 30, 2009 letter, MHAND notified the Commission that, due to lack 
of economic support, it must relinquish its designation as the 21 1 dialing code user. 

On November 2, 2009, the Commission received a Jetter stating that effective 
October 30, 2009, Firstlink will temporarily provide statewide 21 1 operations for North 
Dakota until a decision is made about 21 1 's future. Firstlink subsequently indicated it 
would provide statewide 21 1 operations until March 1 5, 201 0. 

On November 23, 2009, Firstlink filed a letter requesting designation as the 21 1 
dialing code user for North Dakota. 

. . . . ... --..... . . -· . .. ... . . . . ... - �  .. . -

On November 25, 2009, the Commission issued a Notice of Opportunity for 
Hearing providing until January 8, 201 0  for comments and requests for hearing. No 
comments or requests for hearing were received. 

On January 1 4  and January 25, 201 0 ,  FlrstLink filed affidavits of Cindy Miller, 
Executive Director of Firstlink, in support of the application. The January 25 affidavit 
stated that Firstlink is no longer interested in a statewide 21 1 designation due to a lack 
of stable long-term funding for the entire state. However, FirstUnk would like to be the 
designated user of the 21 1 dialing code In Cass County. 

On February 1 0, 201 0, the Commission authorized FirstLink to use the 21 1 
dialing code in Cass County. 

On February 1 9 ,  201 0, a meeting of stakeholders was held to assess support for 
statewide 21 1 services going forward. 

29 · PU-09-71 3 Filed: 3/1 8/2010 Pages:2 
Order Designating Statewide 211 Dialing Code User 

Public Sorvlce Commission 



On February 1 9, 201 0, the Commission issued a Notice of Intent to Reopen 
Proceeding because it had reason to believe that conditions of fact had changed and 
public Interest required the reopening of the proceeding. The Notice listed the following 
issues: 

1 .  

2.  

3. 

Is any other entity interested in designation as the user of 
the 21 1 dial code in North Dakota? 

Is Flrstllnk's intended use of the 21 1 dial code In North 
Dakota consistent with the FCC intended use of that code? 

Is it In the public interest for the Commission to authorize 
Flrstlink statewide use of the 21 1 dialing code, effective 
when Flrstlink's 21 1 services are sufficiently funded? 

On March 4, 201 0, another meeting of stakeholders was held to assess support 
for statewide 21 1 services. 

-

On March 1 1 ,  201 0, FirstLink filed an affidavit of Cindy Miller supporting the 
application and requesting that the Commission authorize Firstllnk as the statewide 
user of the 21 1 dialing code. 

Flrstlink's Intended use of the 21 1 dialing code is· to create and maintain a 
database of programs and services, and then to disseminate this information to 
individuals that dial the 2 1 1  code. Firstlink employs trained call specialists to answer 
information, referral, crisis, listening and support calls. FirstLink is certified in Alliance of 
Information and Referral Systems and has been a call center for many years. 

FirstLink's intended use of the 21 1 dial code In Cass County is consistent with 
the FCC intended use of that code and should be designated for such use. It is In the 
public interest for the Commission to authorize FirstLink statewide use of the 21 1 dialing 
code. 

Order 

FirstLink Is authorized to use the 21 1 dialing code in North Dakota for access to 
communitY "information "iiiid relermrservices: 

.. - --· . - - - -·- · - -·-· . ·- - --· · · . ... . . .. . . .... . 

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

Case No. PU-09-713 
Order Designating 211  Dialing Code User 
Page 2 

Brian P. Kalk 
Commissioner 

, ·  
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First Link 
.. Income Statement 

.� Fofthe Tweivl tlitonths{J:rtdrng;o�cemB;;; ,: 31�:261' 2F • ·;Jnrormatton,&·crJs!sServleea • · «· · ' • ,., .. c ··" ' unaiidited, .. · .. · 

Cl.ccount 
Numbe 

Income 

Description 

3.050 Program Serv!ee Fees 
3100 State Contracts/Fees 
3150 Agency (Governrneht)-GontracUFee 
3200 Publication Sales - Program 
3250 lntarest lncorii'e 
3300 Earrted Revenues - Others 
3350 United Way 
3400 Sponsorship 
3450 ind/Elusiness Contribution 
3500 Foundation/Trust Grants 
3525 Fundtaisers 
3527 Funciralsers·� Year End Appeal 
3528 Fund raisers·� Walk of Hope 
3529 Fundtaisers - Special Event 

Total income 

Expenses 

5()00 Payroll' 
5050 PayroliTaxes 
51 PO Medical Plan Premiums 
5·1 .50 Worker's: Comp Insurance 
52()0 Advertising 
5250 Soard Meetings-Lunches, Dinners 
5.300 Books/Subscriptions/Reference 
535.0 Dues - Organizational Membersnfps. 
540·0 Employee Recruitment Fees 
5425 ProfessiOr)al Fees 
5450 Postage Meter Rental 
5475, LeaseiReritai Expense. 
5500 Equipment Maintenance Supplies 
5525 Copier Lease 
5600 Insurance :- D&O liability 
5650 Insurance - General Liability 
5700 Office Rent 
5750 Postage· 
5800 Printing & Copying 
5900 Telephone 
5950 Training Seminars & Workshops 
6000 Travel 
6 1 00 SpeciaiEvents 
6 1 50 Office Supplies 
6200 Computer Supplies 
62 10 Technology 
6250 Other Supplies 
6300 Vofunteer Recognition 
6350 Misceilaneous 
640 0  Marketing 
6450 Fundraising 
6453 Fund raising - Walk of Hope 
3550 Sank Charges 
i600 Depreciation 

.otal Expenses 

�ef, Profit or (Loss) 

' ,  

Current Period Year to, Date 
ThlsYear This Year 

$510.00 
8,500.00 

1 6,471:70 
0.00 

26,15 
0.00 

14,070.00 
0.00 

3;375:00 
0:00 
0.00 
0.00 
o.oo. 
0.00 

$'1 8,979.80 
1 1 ,000.00 

267,484.43 
0.00 

509.36 
4;023.31 

170,398:29 
2,000.00 
9,733.76 

33,500.0 0, 
o.oo ' 
o:oo 

1 ;686.00 
o·.oo 

--·-------....... -· ....... _______ ., _______ . 

42',952.85 51 9,314.95 

21, 022.95' 
2,1 58.61 
2,240.72 

0.00 
0.00 

341.19 
0.00 

1 ,746:26 
O;OO 

696'.�7 
1 56�50 

0.00 
0.00 

368.99 
0.00 

1 '31 .06 
839.50 
169.55 
271.02 

1 ;442?,5, 
55.43 

213.94 
0.00 

343.88 
0.00 
0.00 

37.50 
0.00 

33.69 
33.75 

0.00 
O.OQ. 

51 .54 
484.76: 

319,065;23 
26;460.07 
30,877:26 

458;96 
82�50 

850:77 
361 .48> 

17,336;26 
609.84 

17,941.13 
313.72 
1.57;22 

0.00 
6,0 1 4A4· 
1 ,791..75 
1 ,641'.28 

1 0,023.25 
4,071.91 
2,581.9.8 

1 3,31 8.52. 
64,825.1 9  

4;822.05 
44.14 

4,287.81 
709.47 

2,209. 1 0  
432.31 
1 96.60 
474.09 

1 ,887.52 
258.75 
345.34 
523.52 

5',817.14 
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1 3.0444.04001 
Title.05000 
Fiscal No. 1 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
House Appropriations Committee 

April 5, 201 3 

PROPOSED AM ENDMENTS TO ENG ROSSED S ENATE BILL NO. 2205 

Page 1 ,  line 5, replace "$233,979" with "$1 25,000" 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2205 - Department of H u man Services - House Action 

Executive 
Budget 

Grant for 2-1-1 services 

Total all funds $0 
Less estimated income 0 

General fund $0 

FTE 0.00 

Senate 
Version 

$233,979 

$233,979 
0 

$233,979 

0.00 

House 
Changes 

($108,979) 

($108,979) 
0 

($108,979) 

0.00 

House 
Version 

$125,000 

$125,000 
0 

$125,000 

0.00 

Department No. 325 - Department of H u man Services - Detail of House Changes 

Grant for 2-1-1 services 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Reduces 
Funding for 

Grant' 

($108,979) 

($108,979) 
0 

($108,979) 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

($108,979) 

($108,979) 
0 

($1 08,979) 

0.00 

1 Funding is reduced from $233,879 for a grant to an organization for administering statewide 2-1 -1 
services. 

Page No.  1 1 3.0444.04001 



Smith, Arvy J. 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
S u bject: 

Smith, Arvy J .  
Wednesday, April 1 7 , 20 1 3  2:23 PM 
Weisz, Robin L. 
RE: 2205 

In 2009-2011 bie n n i u m  ( last b ienn i u m )  we had a federa l  grant. Fi rst Link (who runs 2 - 1 - 1  a nd a lso the nat ional  su ic ide 

hot l ine )  d id  not receive a ny of those grant dol lars from us;  the federa l  gra nt was very restrictive. 

In the 201 1-2013, current b ie n n ium,  we were not awarded the federa l  gra nt so the 2 0 1 1  Legislative Assembly provided 

us $700,000 genera l  fund ing for suic ide.  I n  the current b iennium we d id give Fi rst Li n k  a g ra nt (from that general  fund 

m oney) to do specific projects related to the nationa l  su icide hotl ine .  F i rst L ink wi l l  be able to a pply for specific projects 

related to the nationa l  su ic ide hot l i n e  from our genera l  fu nding in the 2013-15 bienn i u m .  

We a re not i n  favor o f  us ing su ic ide fu n d i ng t o  operate 2-1-1.  We continue o u r  sta nd t h a t  2-1-1 i s  n ot a n  a ppropriate 

n u m ber  for a suicide h ot l ine as  a ca l l e r  in crisis could be placed in a q ueue wait ing for a response. 

Somewhere a long the l ine someone m ust have heard the word "grant" and assumed that was a federa l  grant. I a l so 

know that there was confusion on t h e  Senate floor when SB 2205 was presented that seemed to i n d icate that we had a 

federa l  gra nt for this. 

From : Weisz, Robin L. 
Sent: Wednesday, April 17, 2013 2 : 10 PM 
To: Smith, Arvy J. 
Subject: 2205 

Arvy 

My understand ing was that the money you gave to fi rst l ink  last b ienn ium was part of a federa l  s u ic ide grant a n d  that 

there was supposedly 700000 ava i l a ble in the upcoming bienn ium . 

Robin 

I ' tt- r 3 

1 



2011-2013 Suicide Grants Obl igated Thus Far 

Account 

71 2050 

71 2050 

71 2050 

712050 
71 2050 
71 2050 
71 2050 

7 1 2050 

71 2050 

71 2050 

71 2050 

7 1 2050 

7 1 2050 

7 1 2050 
71 2050 
71 2050 

71 2050 
71 2050 

71 2050 

71 2050 

712050 Total 
71 2070 
71 2070 

712070 Total 
71 2090 

712090 Total 
7 1 2 1 25 

7 1 2 1 25 

7 1 2 1 25 
7 1 2 1 25 
7 1 2 1 25 

7 1 2 1 25 

712125 Total 
722001 

722001 Total 

Grand Total 

Subrecipient Name 

Altru Health System 

Coal Country Community Health Center 

Community Action Partnership, I nc. 
FirstLink 
Hatton Public Schools 
Mayors Community Crisis Coalition 

Mental Health America of North Dakota 

Mercy Hospital Valley City 

North Valley Career Tech Center 

Northern Lights Youth Services, I nc. 

Sakakawea Medical Center 

Sanford Health 

Sanford Medical Center 

South East Education Cooperative 
South Heart Public School 

The Village Family Service Center 

University of Mary 

Valley Community Health Centers 

Valley Health & WIC 

West River Health Services 

Minot State University 

University of North Dakota 

Boys & Girls Club of the Three Affil iated Tribes 

Central Valley Health District 

Fargo Cass Public Health 

First District Health Unit 

Lake Region District Health Unit 

Richland County Health Department 

Upper Missouri District Health Unit 

North Dakota Dept of Corrections 

712050 Grants to Associations including First Link 

712070 Grants to Colleges 
712090 Grants to Tribes 

712125 Grants to Local Public H ealth Units 

1 1 -1 3 NGA 

Amount 

1 2 ,283 

36, 820 

5,000 

162,079 
5, 000 
8, 550 

28, 545 

8,435 

8,000 

1 5,294 

26,750 

7,000 

34,371 

39,000 
8, 000 

4, 562 

7,479 
1 1 ,078 

1 0,000 

7,946 

446,192 
64, 790 

67,591 

132,381 
20, 3 1 9  

20,319 
1 6,81 5  
1 0,000 

5, 000 
1 0,000 

5,000 

5, 000 

51,815 
1 , 300 

1,300 

652,007 

69% 
20% 
3% 
8% 

2 



The Department of Health Suicide Prevention Program currently does not fund 2- 1 - 1  for 

services. The Suicide Prevention Program currently does not use 2- 1 - 1  as a resource for suicidal 

callers, instead the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline (NSPL) 1 . 800.273 .8255 is promoted and 

advertised due to the sometimes emergent nature of suicidal thoughts for the fol lowing reasons: 

1 .  FirstLink has two incoming phone lines designated specifically for NSPL calls and these 
calls take first priority in the order that calls are answered. 

2 .  Due to staffing, there is a potential that if  a call comes in on the NSPL line, a caller on the 
2- 1 - 1  line would be put on hold to answer the Lifeline call or staff will ask the caller on 
2- 1 - 1  if it' s okay to call back at a later time. 

3 .  I f  a caller who may be suicidal calls 2- 1 - 1  the call i s  still answered by appropriately 
trained staff, but because there is no way to identify that call as potentially being an 
emergency and the call is answered in the order that they come in or in a phone "queue" 
which may result in a long wait time or an abandoned call .  

Because of callers with suicidal thoughts potentially being placed in queue, we recommend using 
and promoting the 1 -800-273-TALK (8255) for callers experiencing suicidal thoughts. 

2- 1 - 1  may indirectly provide services to the Suicide Prevention Program by 
• Provide referrals to community agencies on a National Lifeline cal l .  
• Provide suicide intervention when a suicidal caller calls 2- 1 - 1  instead of the National 

Suicide Prevention Lifeline. 
• In providing call back services the call specialist may refer the caller to local community 

resources for the callers and on-going support in the same manner a call to 2- 1 - 1  would 
do. 

Although, as stated above that we do not fund or promote 2- 1 - 1  for services specifically we do 
continue to work with FirstLink which is the organization in Fargo that runs both the Lifeline 
and 2- 1 - 1 .  

Below is a list of funding provided to First link in the last biennium: 

• FirstLink- ASIST (Applied Suicide Intervention Skills Training) 
Amount Awarded : $ 1 4,334 (July 1 ,  20 1 1 -June 30, 20 1 2) 
Description of the Project: The Department of Health funded FirstLink to conduct two 
ASIST trainings. ASIST is a two day gatekeeper training. A gatekeeper is anyone who is 
able to intervene when someone may be experiencing suicidal thoughts. ASIST is on the 
National Best Practice Registry that the Suicide Prevention Resource Center maintains. 
FirstLink conducted two trainings, and trained 44 people in these trainings. 

• FirstLink-Suicide Lifeline call back program-
Amount Awarded: $60,520 (May 1 5 , 20 1 2-June 30, 20 1 3 , although there are plans to 
continue this project in the 20 1 3-20 1 5  biennium) 
Description of the Project: FirstLink will provide a callback service to callers using the 
National Suicide Prevention Lifeline. Once callers call the lifeline they will be asked if 
they would like to have someone follow up with the call specialist. The specialist will 
follow the caller for up to eight weeks, consisting of weekly cal ls for the first four weeks, 



and a phone call every other week in the last four weeks of the program, connecting the 
caller with resources within their area to prevent a suicide attempt, and prevent a 
hospitalization. FirstLink will also provide "listening and support" to the participants in 
the call back program. 
FirstLink wil l  also expand the call back service to hospitals and clinics to provide an 
easily accessible referral source. 
In 20 1 1 ,  FirstLink answered cal ls from 1 , 1 00 people in North Dakota experiencing 
suicidal thoughts . We anticipate 20% or 220 people that called the lifeline will participate 
in the call back service. It is undetermined how many referrals will come from the clinics 
and hospitals. From initial conversations hospital and clinics are excited to have an easily 
accessible referral source for patients with suicidal thoughts . 

• FirstLink-Applied Suicide Intervention Skills Training for Trainers (ASIST T4T)

Amount Awarded : $8 1 ,795 (May 1 5, 20 1 2-June 30, 20 1 3 ) 
Description of the Project: FirstLink was provided funding to assist in developing a 
network of ASIST trainers. This particular ASIST program will begin with a train the 
trainer component for 24 North Dakotans. Funding includes the cost paid to Livingworks 
to bring the train the trainer program to North Dakota. Each of the 24 participants will be 
required to complete three ASIST trainings within the next year. FirstLink, who employs 
two Master ASIST trainers wil l  mentor and coach the new ASIST trainers and wil l  
monitor progress of the ASIST trainings. 
This project has the potential to produce 36 ASIST trainings with 20 people each which 
has the potential to train 720 people across North Dakota. As of January 25, 20 1 3  there 
have been 1 73 participants trained in ASIST by the new trainers. 

• FirstLink: $5,430 (April 1 5 , 20 1 2-December 3 1 ,  20 1 2) 
Description of the Project: The Department of Health funded two people, one from 
Spirit Lake and one from Fort Berthold to attend the ASIST T4T (Applied Suicide 
Intervention Skills Training for trainers). FirstLink was also contracted with to mentor 
the new ASIST trainers. Firstlink is an agency that has two master ASIST trainers that 
can assist with developing skil ls in new ASIST trainers as well as assist in retaining the 
new trainers. Upon receiving the training, they are conducting an ASIST training at each 
of the five tribal colleges throughout the state. The Department of Health worked closely 
with the North Dakota Indian Affairs Commission, and both programs have contributed 
funding to this project. The training is to be free to participants. We are hoping by 
bringing a best practice program at no-cost to the reservations we are able to reduce 
barriers and increase suicide prevention gatekeepers. 
The two trainers have conducted four trainings as of this date, on four of the tribal college 
campuses. 



• 

• 

• 

1 3. 0444.04002 
Title . 

Prepared by the Legislative Council st 
Representative Weisz 

April 241 201 3  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE B I LL NO. 2205 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1 209 and 1 2 1  0 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1 269 and 1 270 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bil l  
No. 2205 be amended as follows: 

Page 1 I line 51 replace "$2331979" with "$2851000" 

Page 1 I line 7 I after "services" insert "that include suicide prevention services" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 1 3. 0444.04002 



2011 -2013 Suicide G rants Obligated Thus Far 

Account 

71 2050 
71 2050 

7 1 2050 

712050 
71 2050 
71 2050 
7 1 2050 

71 2050 

71 2050 

71 2050 

71 2050 
7 1 2050 

71 2050 

7 1 2050 
71 2050 

71 2050 
71 2050 
71 2050 
71 2050 

71 2050 

71 2050 Total 
7 1 2070 
7 1 2070 

71 2070 Total 
7 1 2090 

71 2090 Total 
7 1 2 1 25 

7 1 2 1 25 

7 1 2 1 25 
7 1 2 1 25 

7 1 2 1 25 
7 1 2 1 25 

7121 25 Total 
722001 

722001 Total 

G rand Total 

Subrecipient Name 

Altru Health System 

Coal Cou ntry Community Health Center 

Community Action Partnership, I nc. 

FirstLink 
. Hatton Public Schools 

Mayors Community Crisis Coalition 

Mental Health America of North Dakota 

Mercy Hospital Valley City 

North Valley Career Tech Center 

Northern Lights Youth Services, Inc. 

Sakakawea Medical Center 

Sanford Health 

Sanford Medical Center 

South East Education Cooperative 
South Heart Public School 

The Village Family Service Center 
University of Mary 

Valley Community Health Centers 

Valley Health & WIC 

West River Health Services 

Minot State University 
University of North Dakota 

Boys & Girls Club of the Three Affiliated Tribes 

Central Valley Health District 

Fargo Cass Public Health 

First District Health Unit 

Lake Region District Health Unit 
Richland County Health Department 
Upper M issouri District Health Unit 

North Dakota Dept of Corrections 

71 2050 G rants to Associations including First Link 

71 2070 G rants to Colleges 
71 2090 G rants to Tribes 

712125 G rants to Local Public Health Units 

11-13 NGA 

Amount 

1 2 ,283 

36,820 
5, 000 

162,079 
5,000 
8,550 

28,545 

8,435 

8, 000 

1 5,294 

26,750 

7,000 

34,371 

39,000 
8, 000 

4,562 

7,479 
1 1 ,078 

1 0,000 

..7,946 

446,192 
64,790 
67,591 

132,381 
20, 3 1 9  

20,319 
1 6,81 5 

1 0,000 

5, 000 
1 0,000 

5,000 
5,000 

51,81 5 
1 , 300 

1 ,300 

652,007 

69% 
20% 
3% 
8% 



Smith, Arvy J. 

To: Smith , Arvy J. 
S u bject: FW: SB 2205 2-1 -1 proposal from DoH 

Our stand on provid ing suicide fu n d i ng to 2-1-1 is  that it doesn't fit because suicide ca l lers wo u ld be placed in a queue 

rather than receive i m m ed iate respo nse and this  is not a ppropriate fo r suicide ca l lers i n  crisis. However, F irst L ink (the 

e ntity who a nswers 2-1-1) is a lso N o rth Dakota's designated national  suic ide preve ntion l ife l ine ca l l  center. We 

understa nd that F irst Li n k  receives a very smal l  amount from the natio nal  suicide hotl i ne for a nswe ring those cal ls .  The 

DoH would be open to providing $50,000 of o u r  suicide general  fu nding to F irst L ink  for a nswering the nation a l  suicide 

hot l i ne ca l ls so their other fu n d i ng does not have to subsidize this effo rt. This co uld  be acco m p l ished by adding the 

fol lowi ng la nguage to SB 2205 o r  SB 2004: 
It is the intent of the sixty-third legislative assembly that $50,000 of the fu nding provided for suicide prevention in the 

department of health budget for the 2013-15 biennium contained in senate bil l  2004 be provided to North Dakota's 

designated national suicide prevention lifeline call center for responding to calls received on the l ifel ine. 

The Do H cu rrently provides $162,079 to Fi rst L ink for specific suicide activities such as Appl ied Suicide I nterve ntion Ski l ls  

Tra i n i ng (ASIST) and a ca l lback service to check o n  ca l lers who agree to fo l low up contact. The Do H is eva l uating the 

success of these activities since they a re new but wi l l  l i kely consider these types of activities for 2013-15 fu nding.  In 

add ition, Fi rst Li nk is app lying for a federal  grant for the ca l l  back progra m  and if successful i n  receiving the federal  grant 

to fu nd that activity we would not provide state fu nd ing for that progra m .  We a re o p posed however, to provid ing 

su icide fu nding fo r genera l operations of 2-1-1 beca use ca l lers a re p laced i n  a q ueue.  Some language that could be 

added to e ither SB 2205 o r  SB 2004 to provide assurance that First Link wi l l  be co nsidered for suicide prevention fu nding 

could be as fo l lows: 

It  is the i ntent of the sixty-third legislative assembly that $160,000 of the fu nding provided for suicide prevention i n  

t h e  department o f  health budget for t h e  2013-15 biennium contained in senate b i l l  2004 b e  provided t o  North 

Dakota's designated national suicide prevention lifeline call center for suicide prevention projects. If North Dakota's 

national suicide prevention lifeline call center receives federal assistance for suicide prevention projects the a mount 

of federal assistance received will be reduced from the $160,000 to be provided. 

1 




